








ORGANIZATION, JOB DESCRIPTION                                               NO.  222 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

1 
 

 
CAREER TECHNICIAN 

 
DEFINITION: 

Under the direction and supervision of the County Superintendent or designee, 
coordinates and performs a variety of guidance services appropriate for a high school 
career planning and college information center. This position supports the site 
administrator and staff in the implementation of basic career education including college 
admissions, career planning and other post-secondary options. Providing assistance to 
staff in the development of various life skills projects to enhance student learning is an 
element of this position.  
 
QUALIFICATIONS:   

 Experience working in vocational and career guidance programs or school counseling 

 Experience working in business/education partnerships 

 Knowledge of computer functions including word processing, computer software 

programs and spreadsheet applications 

 Ability to establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with others in the 

academic and business/work environment 

 Self-motivator and ability to effectively work unsupervised 

 Ability to communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing including  

public speaking skills 

 Highly organized 

 High school diploma or equivalent to twelfth grade graduation 

 Prefer Associate degree or BA/BS degree in the areas of social service, education, 

vocational education or closely related field  

 General knowledge of A-G requirements, high school graduation requirements, 

district curriculum standards and course content  

 California Driver’s License 

 California Department of Justice clearance 

 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: 

 Coordinates and promotes the services of the career center available to students 

and staff; provides training for staff related to resources available through the 

career center 

 Recommends purchase of career awareness or appropriate educational materials 

for career center 

 Interacts with students, staff and parents to provide resources including books, 

catalogs, community contacts and computer-aided resources  



ORGANIZATION, JOB DESCRIPTION                                               NO.  222 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

2 
 

 Assists students in obtaining information on colleges, vocational schools, military 

organizations and career alternatives 

 Assembles, disseminates, collects and reviews scholarship and financial aid 

information 

 Counsels with students in exploring careers, career trends and employment 

opportunities including career assessments 

 Guides and assists students with applications, resumes, and job interview 

preparations 

 Initiates relationships between students and community merchants and/or 

professional business owners 

 Implements job shadowing experiences for students 

 Reviews vocational aptitude test results with students 

 Prepares letters and various correspondence 

 Schedules speakers, college representatives and recruiters 

 Coordinates university/college/vocational school visitations and other career 

awareness activities for students 

 Organizes all aspects of the annual mock interview project  

 Assists with senior projects; organizes judging panels and participants 

 Shares ideas on new career awareness programs and possible improvement of 

current projects with school staff; participates with implementation of new programs 

and/or improvements  

 Works in concert with teaching staff to develop out-of-classroom career enrichment 

and life skills enhancement projects infused with standard curriculum 

 Counsels with teachers about elective course contents  

 Recruits and organizes community volunteers for career-based and life skills 

projects 

 Performs other duties as assigned that support the overall objective of the position 
 
PHYSICAL ABILITIES: 

 Essential duties may require physical abilities including standing and walking for 

extended periods of time, sitting/working at desk, lifting/carrying, reaching/handling, 

bending/twisting, talking/hearing, near and far visual acuity/depth perception, 

manual dexterity to operate office equipment and computer. Ability to lift supplies 

and materials up to fifteen pounds. May be exposed to outdoor environment. 

 

Adopted: September 10, 2002 

Revision: June 18, 2014 
Z:Job Description:/ SCOE Career Technician_rev 

 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 160,144.00 174,232.00 17,820.84 156,665.26 254.10-Teachers Salaries

1120 4,833.00 7,705.00 12,003.50 4,298.50-Certificated Substitutes

1200 58,392.00 61,020.00 6,101.97 54,917.73 .30 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 65,192.00 89,284.00 7,743.41 81,541.14 .55-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 288,561.00 332,241.00 31,666.22 305,127.63 4,552.85-

2100 107,184.00 91,495.00 13,106.00 85,811.82 7,422.82-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 13,238.00 13,850.00 1,493.71 13,186.84 830.55-Classified Support Salaries

2300 90,812.00 95,843.00 7,830.00 86,475.00 1,538.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 113,140.00 122,601.00 10,484.75 113,403.13 1,286.88-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 4,000.00 8,464.00 4,464.00-Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 330,518.00 327,789.00 32,914.46 307,340.79 12,466.25-

3101 22,319.00 26,608.00 2,612.44 24,350.88 355.32-STRS Certificated Positions

3102 433.00 34.83 526.11 127.94-STRS Classified Positions

3201 302.00 392.85 90.85-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 52,074.00 47,907.00 4,144.40 44,155.02 392.42-PERS Classified Positions

3301 1,118.00 331.30 331.30-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,869.00 19,419.00 1,960.10 18,110.77 651.87-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,482.00 5,093.00 449.49 4,514.76 128.75 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,653.00 4,616.00 464.25 4,330.82 179.07-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 70,692.00 77,406.00 7,501.28 69,902.48 2.24 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 84,530.00 79,608.00 6,678.55 71,076.39 1,853.06 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 1,358.00 180.00 15.85 159.22 4.93 SUI Certificated

3502 165.00 165.00 16.47 149.55 1.02-SUI Classified

3601 8,916.00 10,074.00 922.98 8,884.94 266.08 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,239.00 9,480.00 953.32 8,893.04 366.36-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 27,730.00 .00 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3901 26,768.00 12,958.44 13,809.56 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 308,145.00 308,059.00 25,753.96 268,736.57 13,568.47 

4100 400.00 400.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 6,613.00 1,582.00 1,297.20 284.80 Library and Reference Material

4300 18,975.00 16,892.00 394.19 8,799.13 7,698.68 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 570.45 729.55 Custodial Supplies

4330 2,000.00 2,000.00 898.14 1,101.86 Office Supplies

4340 206.89- 206.89 COUNTY OFFICE MOVING EXP

4350 6,500.00 6,500.00 710.68 3,038.62 2,750.70 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:55PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4340
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2013/14Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4400 900.00 15,935.64 15,035.64-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 35,388.00 29,574.00 1,104.87 30,332.29 1,863.16-

5100 33,544.00 33,544.00 38,960.00 5,416.00-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,985.00 15,708.00 3,923.54 13,531.12 1,746.66-Travel and Conference

5300 17,470.00 49,570.00 41,537.50 8,032.50 Dues and Membership

5400 10,200.00 10,450.00 10,149.00 301.00 Insurance

5500 8,000.00 8,000.00 422.42 8,340.47 762.89-Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,700.00 2,200.00 38.82 1,468.69 692.49 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 9,000.00 8,400.00 9,200.00 800.00-Professional Consulting

5801 29,205.00 25,205.00 144.50 355.50 24,705.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 200.00 40.00- 340.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 258.00 113.00 222.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 250.00 1,198.79 51.21 Other Services & Fees

5810 195,310.00 303,399.00 76,242.00 122,208.14 104,948.86 Contracted Services

5899 1,541.86 988.61 2,530.47-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 2,000.00 2,000.00 642.74 1,357.26 Communications

Total for Object 5000 336,007.00 463,069.00 83,021.14 248,653.56 131,394.30 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 28,525.00 18,581.87 9,943.13 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 .00 58,557.00 .00 18,581.87 39,975.13 

7110 143,407.00 143,500.00 143,442.44 13,894.10- 13,951.66 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 213,187.00 17,750.00 8,148.92 10,314.02 712.94-Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7281 100,000.00 100,000.00 .00 All Other Transfers to Distric

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 356,594.00 261,250.00 151,591.36 96,419.92 13,238.72 

1,655,213.00 1,780,539.00 326,052.01 1,275,192.63 179,294.36 Total for Expense accounts

179,294.36 1,655,213.00 1,780,539.00 326,052.01 1,275,192.63 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2014, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:55PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7281
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=68445&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310




SCOE
Minutes

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION

May 13, 2014
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118

6 pm

A.  CALL TO ORDER

President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 6:04 pm.

B.  ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr.  Allen Wright, President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President
Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk arrived
Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member
Mr.  Mike Moore, Member

ABSENT: None

VACANT: None

C. FLAG SALUTE

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MOORE/HALL
5/0

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

a. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) Quarterly
Meeting. The main focus was the LCAP and the process of assessing districts. The attitude
was that this is a base year - a year of laying out the procedures. Discussions included the
Governor's Budget revision, the health of the state (stronger than estimates in January),
and the “Rainy Day” Fund.

b. Superintendent’s Update Regarding Reduction of Particular Kinds of Service
The reduction to .6 FTE, Certificated, will be rescinded and the reduction to the .6 FTE,
SELPA, will be rescinded.

2. BUSINESS REPORT

Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/13 to 4/30/14. There
were no comments or questions.  Ms. Asquith mentioned that there will be adjustments due to
an over-budget category; a revision will be forthcoming.

Correspondence from California Department of Education, FY 2012-13 Federal Audit
Findings. The only finding is lack of separation and internal control because we are a small
administration.



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
May 13, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

2

3. STAFF REPORT

There were no Staff Reports

4. SPTA REPORT

There were no SPTA Reports

5. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT

There were no Board Member Reports

6. PUBLIC COMMENT

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:12 pm.
There was no comment from the Loyalton location.
There was no comment from the Downieville (teleconferenced) location.
President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:13 pm.

F.  CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included in the consent calendar:

1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 8, 2014
2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of April 2014
3.  Acknowledgement of Review of Board Policy/Administrative Regulation 5116.1,

Intradistrict Open Enrollment
MOORE/DRISCOLL
5/0

G.  ACTION ITEMS

1.  NEW BUSINESS

PUBLIC HEARING-PROP 30

1314-117 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the Use of Proposition
30 funds, Education Protection Account.  Ms. Asquith explained that the Education Fund
Proposition was approved by the voters. This money is used for a ROP Teacher and aide. In
response to a question, Ms. Asquith explained that this money can be used to pay district costs,
with a few exceptions.

PUBLIC HEARING-LCAP

1314-118 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to present the 2014-15 Local Control and
Accountability Plan and to address any public comments and questions.
Mrs. Marla Stock, Administrator, Loyalton High School, prepared an Executive Summary
Report (handout). She reviewed the ten state priorities listed on the summary.  The LCAP is
in three sections:  Stakeholder Engagement and Impact, Goals and Progress Indicators and
Actions, Services and Expenditures



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
May 13, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

3

Each section coordinates with each of the major goals of Conditions of Learning, Pupil
Outcomes and Engagement.
We have set goals as well as actions to achieve those goals for the next three years.
Next year we will focus strongly on stakeholder engagement, which was limited by time and
schedules this year.

Meschery (LHS Teacher): The Local Control Funding Formula…is it tied to this plan?
Dr. Grant:  The LCAP shows what areas we must fund and LCFF controls appropriate use of
the funding.  This year we will plan on paper what we are doing; next year we will prove how
we accomplished it.

This public hearing closed at 6:23 pm.

PUBLIC HEARING-SCOE Budget

1314-119 The Purpose of the Public Hearing is to receive public comment on the 2014-15 Proposed
Budget
Ms. Asquith reviewed the Budget.  She stated that the County is still healthy.  The question is
what portion of the gap the state will fund.
All County offices will receive a base, an amount per district, and an amount per ADA.
Forest Reserve revenue has not yet been reauthorized.
Estimated Actuals, under expenditures, #7 Other Outgo, the board agreed to contribute to the
District for repaving the LHS parking lot the sum of $100,000.
Page 2- Net decrease
This year we are expecting a $200,000+ deficit; next year we anticipate a profit of $194,000.
Fund Balance Reserves:
2 e, 9789 under the object code under budget on Colum F; should be $148,000, the economic
uncertainty; this is still part of your reserves so it's designated as your 10%.

The auditors are going to be comparing the LCAP with the Budget to make sure that it
supports the LCAP.
There were no questions or comments.
This public hearing closed at 6:30 pm.

1314-120 Direction to Superintendent regarding Board Trustee computers
The Board suggested a trial period. If two used laptops are available in the District, two Board
Members will try out the paperless agenda method.

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS
MOORE motioned to approve Items 121 to 123 with the following edition to AR 5144,
Discipline: REMOVE "Students may be offered the choice of serving their detention on Saturday
rather than after school"/DRISCOLL seconded.

1314-121 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3260, Fees and Charges, revision

1314-122 Approval of Administrative Regulation 3460, Financial Reports and Accountability, revision

1314-123 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation  5144, Discipline, revision



Sierra County Board of Education
Regular Meeting Minutes
May 13, 2014

SCOE
Minutes

4

H.  ADVANCED PLANNING

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on WEDNESDAY, JUNE 18, at Downieville School, Downieville,
California, beginning with Closed Session as needed at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm.

Suggested Agenda Items

1. LCAP approval
2. Budget approval
3. SELPA Plan
4. Superintendent Contract and
5. Set Superintendent Salary

I.    ADJOURNMENT

Adjourned at 6:45 pm.
DRISCOLL/HALL
5/0

__________________________ _______________________________
Patty Hall, Clerk Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 05/01/2014 through 05/31/2014

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

BASALITE 01-430005/12/201400013950 1,777.47 

HEIDI BETHKE 01-520005/12/201400013951 54.88 

DEPT. OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 

RECOVERY SECTION, MS 4720

01-950005/12/201400013952 523.00 

COATES/LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-435005/12/201400013953 923.73 

LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-550005/12/201400013954 204.00 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581005/12/201400013955 3,200.00 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580805/12/201400013956 258.69 

STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL 01-430005/12/201400013957 169.94 

VOYAGER 01-435005/12/201400013958 114.02 

01-5200 193.97 

01-5899 418.43 110.44 

APPLE COMPUTER 01-440005/27/201400013959 2,480.32 

GORDON N. STOWE & ASSOCIATES 01-581005/27/201400013960 130.42 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581005/27/201400013961 3,200.00 

SISKIYOU COUNTY OFFICE        OF 

EDUCATION

01-530005/27/201400013962 1,334.67 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953505/27/201400013963 3,158.00 

76-9576 15,247.10 12,089.10 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520005/27/201400013964 21.00 

29,943.65 Total Number of Checks 15 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 15 17,854.55 01

Payroll Clearing 1 12,089.10 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 29,943.65 

.00 

29,943.65 

15 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Jun  3 2014  2:57PM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.















California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP-02a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Annual Service Plan (001)
Location Services Provided at this Location

List the site name and
type of facility providing

services to students
enrolled in the LEA.

Type
Of

Facility

List the California Special Education Management
Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with each

service that is provided at the location listed in the left-
hand column.

Loyalton Elementary 10 330 340 350 415 425 445 450 510 515 535
610 740

Loyalton High School 10 330 340 350 415 425 445 450 510 515 530
535 750 755 820 830 840 850 855 860 865
890

Downieville Elementary 10 330 340 350 415 425 445 450 510 515 530
535

Downieville Jr/Sr High 10 330 340 350 415 425 445 450 510 515 530
535 750 755 820 830 840 850 855 860 865
890

Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22:
10–Public Day School 11–Public Residential School 15–Special Education Center/Facility

19–Other Public School/Facilities 20–Continuation School 22–Alternative Work Education Center/
Work Study Program

24–Independent Study 31–Community School 55–Charter School (operated by an LEA/
District/County Office of Education)

56–Charter School (operating as an LEA)

Page _______ of _______



California Department of Education                                                                                  Special Education Division
ASP–02a 004 (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Pre-School Services (004)
Location Services Provided at this Location

List the site name and type
of facility providing services
to students enrolled in the

LEA.

Type of
Facility

List the California Special Education
Management Information System (CASEMIS)

code associated with each service that is
provided at the location listed in the left-hand

column.
Loyalton Preschool 10 330 415 425 450 530

Use these numbers to identify the type of facility where Pre-School Services (ages 3–5) are provided:
40–Home Instruction 45–Hospital Facility
61–Head Start Program 62–Child Development or Child Care Facility
63–State Preschool Program 64–Private Preschool
65–Extended Day Care Program

Page ____ of _____



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

210 Family training, counseling, and home visits (ages 0–2 only): This
service includes: services provided by social workers, psychologists, or other
qualified personnel to assist the family in understanding the special needs of
the child and enhancing the child’s development. Note: Services provided by
specialists (such as medical services, nursing services, occupational therapy,
and physical therapy) for a specific function should be coded under the
appropriate service category, even if the services were delivered in the home.

X

34 Code of Federal
Regulations  (CFR )

sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

220 Medical services (for evaluation only) (ages 0–2 only): Services provided
by a licensed physician to determine a child’s developmental status and need
for early intervention services.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

230 Nutrition services (ages 0–2 only): These services include conducting
assessments in: nutritional history and dietary intake; anthropometric,
biochemical, and clinical variables; feeding skills and feeding problems; and
food habits and food preferences.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

240 Service coordination (ages 0–2 only) X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

California Department of Education
Special Education Division
Revised March 2014

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 22

230 Nutrition services (ages 0–2 only): These services include conducting
assessments in: nutritional history and dietary intake; anthropometric,
biochemical, and clinical variables; feeding skills and feeding problems; and
food habits and food preferences.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

240 Service coordination (ages 0–2 only) X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

250 Special instruction (ages 0–2 only): Special instruction includes: the design
of learning environments and activities that promote the child’s acquisition of
skills in a variety of developmental areas, including cognitive processes and
social interaction; curriculum planning, including the planned interaction of
personnel, materials, and time and space, that leads to achieving the
outcomes in the child’s individualized family service plan (IFSP); providing
families with information, skills, and support related to enhancing the skill
development of the child; and working with the child to enhance the child’s
development.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

260 Special education aide in regular development class, childcare center,
or family childcare home (ages 0–2 only) X 34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

270 Respite care services (ages 0–2 only): Through the IFSP process, short-
term care given in-home or out-of-home, which temporarily relieves families
of the ongoing responsibility for specialized care for child with a disability.
(Note: only for infants and toddlers from birth through 2, but under 3.)

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

330 Specialized academic instruction: Adapting, as appropriate to the needs of
the child with a disability, the content, methodology, or delivery of instruction
to ensure access of the child to the general curriculum, so that he or she can
meet the educational standards within the jurisdiction of the public agency
that apply to all children.

X 34 CFR  Section
300.39(b)(3)

340 Intensive individual instruction: IEP Team determination that student
requires additional support for all or part of the day to meet his or her IEP
goals.

X
30 California Education

Code (EC ) Section
56364

350 Individual and small group instruction: Instruction delivered one-to-one or
in a small group as specified in an IEP enabling the individual(s) to
participate effectively in the total school program. X

5 California Code of
Regulations  (CCR )

Section 3051;
30 EC  Section 56441.2

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial
intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using
spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation
(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed
disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or
the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language.
Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the
English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are
not included. Services include specialized instruction and services:
monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect,
including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(15),
300.8 (c)(11)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 22

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial
intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using
spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation
(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed
disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or
the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language.
Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the
English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are
not included. Services include specialized instruction and services:
monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect,
including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(15),
300.8 (c)(11)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

425 Adapted physical education: Direct physical education services provided by
an adapted physical education specialist to pupils who have needs that
cannot be adequately satisfied in other physical education programs as
indicated by assessment and evaluation of motor skills performance and
other areas of need. It may include individually designed developmental
activities, games, sports, and rhythms, for strength development and fitness
suited to the capabilities, limitations, and interests of individual students with
disabilities who may not safely, successfully, or meaningfully engage in
unrestricted participation in the vigorous activities of the general or modified
physical education program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.5;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.108, 300.39 (b)(2)

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services:
Specialized physical health care services means those health services
prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically
related training of the individual who performs the services and which are
necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR
Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are
not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer
treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.12;

30 EC  sections 56363,
49423.5(d)

34 CFR  Section
300.107;

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 22

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services:
Specialized physical health care services means those health services
prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically
related training of the individual who performs the services and which are
necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR
Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are
not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer
treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.12;

30 EC  sections 56363,
49423.5(d)

34 CFR  Section
300.107;

436 Health and nursing–other services: This includes services that are
provided to individuals with exceptional needs by a qualified individual
pursuant to an IEP when a student has health problems which require
nursing intervention beyond basic school health services. Services include
managing the health problem, consulting with staff, group and individual
counseling, making appropriate referrals, and maintaining communication
with agencies and health care providers. These services do not include any
physician supervised or specialized health care service. IEP required health
and nursing services are expected to supplement the regular health services
program.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.12;

30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section

300.107

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

445 Assistive technology services: Any specialized training or technical support
for the incorporation of assistive devices, adapted computer technology, or
specialized media with the educational programs to improve access for
students. The term includes a functional analysis of the student's needs for
assistive technology; selecting, designing, fitting, customizing, or repairing
appropriate devices; coordinating services with assistive technology devices;
training or technical assistance for students with a disability, the student's
family, individuals providing education or rehabilitation services, and
employers.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  sections
300.6, 300.105

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to
improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help
abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and
use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception
and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct
and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other
educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include
therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's
environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff
and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified
occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy
Certification Board.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(6)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 22

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to
improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help
abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and
use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception
and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct
and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other
educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include
therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's
environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff
and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified
occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy
Certification Board.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(6)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

460 Physical therapy: These services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a
registered physical therapist, or physical therapist assistant, when
assessment shows a discrepancy between gross motor performance and
other educational skills. Physical therapy includes, but is not limited to, motor
control and coordination, posture and balance, self-help, functional mobility,
accessibility and use of assistive devices. Services may be provided within
the classroom, other educational settings or in the home, and may occur in
groups or individually. These services may include adaptations to the
student's environment and curriculum, selected therapeutic techniques and
activities, and consultation and collaborative interventions with staff and
parents.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
 300.34 (c)(9);

California Business
and Professions Code
(B&PC ) Chapter 5.7
sections 2600–2696;
Government Code
(GC ) Interagency

Agreement
Chapter 26.5

Section 7575(a)(2)
510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified

individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects
as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on
learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling
is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(2)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 22

510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects
as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on
learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling
is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(2)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

515 Counseling and guidance: Counseling in a group setting, provided by a
qualified individual pursuant to an IEP. Group counseling is typically social
skills development, but may focus on such student aspects as education,
career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on learning problems
or guidance programs for students. IEP required group counseling is
expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.
Guidance services include interpersonal, intrapersonal, or family
interventions, performed in an individual or group setting by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP. Specific programs include social skills
development, self-esteem building, parent training, and assistance to special
education students supervised by staff credentialed to serve special
education students. These services are expected to supplement the regular
guidance and counseling program.

X
34 CFR sections

300.24.(b)(2), 300.306;
5 CCR  Section 3051.9

520 Parent counseling: Individual or group counseling provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP to assist the parent(s) of special education
students in better understanding and meeting their child's needs and may
include parenting skills or other pertinent issues. IEP required parent
counseling is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling
program.

X

5 CCR Section
3051.11;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(8)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 22

520 Parent counseling: Individual or group counseling provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP to assist the parent(s) of special education
students in better understanding and meeting their child's needs and may
include parenting skills or other pertinent issues. IEP required parent
counseling is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling
program.

X

5 CCR Section
3051.11;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(8)

525 Social work services: Social work services, provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP, include, but are not limited to, preparing a
social or developmental history of a child with a disability, group and
individual counseling with the child and family, working with those problems
in a child's living situation (home, school, and community) that affect the
child's adjustment in school, and mobilizing school and community resources
to enable the child to learn as effectively as possible in his or her educational
program. Social work services are expected to supplement the regular
guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.13;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(14)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

530 Psychological services: These services, provided by a credentialed or
licensed psychologist pursuant to an IEP, include interpreting assessment
results for parents and staff in implementing the IEP, obtaining and
interpreting information about child behavior and conditions related to
learning, and planning programs of individual and group counseling and
guidance services for children and parents. These services may include
consulting with other staff in planning school programs to meet the special
needs of children as indicated in the IEP. IEP required psychological services
are expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.10;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(10)

535 Behavior intervention services: A systematic implementation of procedures
designed to promote lasting, positive changes in the student's behavior
resulting in greater access to a variety of community settings, social contacts,
public events, and placement in the least restrictive environment.

X

 5 CCR  Section
3001(d);

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(10)

540 Day treatment services: Structured education, training, and support
services to address the student’s mental health needs. X

Health & Safety Code,
Div.2, Chap.3, Article 1,

Section 1502(a)
545 Residential treatment services: A 24-hour, out-of-home placement that

provides intensive therapeutic services to support the educational program. X

Welfare and Institutions
Code,

Part 2, Chapter 2.5,
Art. 1, Section 5671

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 22

540 Day treatment services: Structured education, training, and support
services to address the student’s mental health needs. X

Health & Safety Code,
Div.2, Chap.3, Article 1,

Section 1502(a)
545 Residential treatment services: A 24-hour, out-of-home placement that

provides intensive therapeutic services to support the educational program. X

Welfare and Institutions
Code,

Part 2, Chapter 2.5,
Art. 1, Section 5671

610 Specialized services for low incidence disabilities: Low incidence
services are defined as those provided to the student population who have
orthopedic impairment (OI), visual impairment (VI), who are deaf, hard of
hearing (HH), or deaf-blind (DB). Typically, services are provided in
education settings by an itinerant teacher or an itinerant teacher/specialist.
Consultation is provided to the teacher, staff, and parents as needed. These
services must be clearly written in the student's IEP, including frequency and
duration of the services to the student.

X
5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

710 Specialized deaf and hard of hearing services: These services include
speech therapy, speech reading, auditory training, and/or instruction in the
student's mode of communication. Rehabilitative and educational services;
adapting curricula, methods, and the learning environment; and special
consultation to students, parents, teachers, and other school personnel.

X
5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

715 Interpreter services: Sign language interpretation of spoken language to
individuals, whose communication is normally sign language, by a qualified
sign language interpreter.  This includes conveying information through the
sign system of the student or consumer and tutoring students regarding class
content through the sign system of the student.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.16;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(4)

720 Audiological services: These services include measurements of acuity,
monitoring amplification, and frequency modulation system use. Consultation
services with teachers, parents, or speech pathologists must be identified in
the IEP as to reason, frequency, and duration of contact; infrequent contact
is considered assistance and would not be included.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.2;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(1)

725 Specialized vision services: This is a broad category of services provided
to students with visual impairments. It includes assessment of functional
vision; curriculum modifications necessary to meet the student's educational
needs including Braille, large type, and aural media; instruction in areas of
need; concept development and academic skills; communication skills
including alternative modes of reading and writing; and social, emotional,
career, vocational, and independent living skills. It may include coordination
of other personnel providing services to the students such as transcribers,
readers, counselors, orientation and mobility specialists, career/vocational
staff, and others, and collaboration with the student's classroom teacher.

X
5 CCR  Section

3030(d);
30 EC  Section 56364.1

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 22

725 Specialized vision services: This is a broad category of services provided
to students with visual impairments. It includes assessment of functional
vision; curriculum modifications necessary to meet the student's educational
needs including Braille, large type, and aural media; instruction in areas of
need; concept development and academic skills; communication skills
including alternative modes of reading and writing; and social, emotional,
career, vocational, and independent living skills. It may include coordination
of other personnel providing services to the students such as transcribers,
readers, counselors, orientation and mobility specialists, career/vocational
staff, and others, and collaboration with the student's classroom teacher.

X
5 CCR  Section

3030(d);
30 EC  Section 56364.1

730 Orientation and mobility: Students with identified visual impairments are
trained in body awareness and to understand how to move. Students are
trained to develop skills to enable them to travel safely and independently
around the school and in the community. It may include consultation services
to parents regarding their children requiring such services according to an
IEP.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.34
(c)(7)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

735 Braille transcription: Any transcription services to convert materials from
print to Braille. It may include textbooks, tests, worksheets, or anything
necessary for instruction. The transcriber should be qualified in English
Braille as well as Nemeth Code (mathematics) and be certified by appropriate
agency.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section 300.8

(c)(13)
740 Specialized orthopedic services: Specially designed instruction related to

the unique needs of students with orthopedic disabilities, including
specialized materials and equipment. X

5 CCR  sections
3030(e), 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section 300.8

(c)(8)
745 Reading services X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16
750 Note taking services: Any specialized assistance given to the student for

the purpose of taking notes when the student is unable to do so
independently. This may include, but is not limited to, copies of notes taken
by another student or transcription of tape-recorded information from a class
or aide designated to take notes. This does not include instruction in the
process of learning how to take notes.

X 5 CCR Section 3051.16

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 22

750 Note taking services: Any specialized assistance given to the student for
the purpose of taking notes when the student is unable to do so
independently. This may include, but is not limited to, copies of notes taken
by another student or transcription of tape-recorded information from a class
or aide designated to take notes. This does not include instruction in the
process of learning how to take notes.

X 5 CCR Section 3051.16

755 Transcription services: Any transcription service to convert materials from
print to a mode of communication suitable for the student. This may also
include dictation services as it may pertain to textbooks, tests, worksheets, or
anything necessary for instruction.

X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16

760 Recreation services, includes therapeutic recreation: Therapeutic
recreation and specialized instructional programs designed to assist pupils to
become as independent as possible in leisure activities, and when possible
and appropriate, facilitate the pupil's integration into general recreation
programs.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.15;

34 CFR  Section 300.34
(c)(11)

820 College awareness: College awareness is the result of acts that promote
and increase student learning about higher education opportunities,
information, and options that are available including, but not limited to, career
planning, course prerequisites, admission eligibility, and financial aid.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

830 Vocational assessment, counseling, guidance, and career assessment:
Organized educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of
individuals for paid or unpaid employment, and may include provision for
work experience, job coaching, development and/or placement, and
situational assessment. This includes career counseling to assist a student in
assessing his/her aptitudes, abilities, and interests in order to make realistic
career decisions.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

840 Career awareness: Transition services include a provision for self-advocacy,
career planning, and career guidance. This also emphasizes the need for
coordination between these provisions and the Perkins Act to ensure that
students with disabilities in middle schools will be able to access vocational
education funds.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

850 Work experience education: Work experience education means organized
educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of individuals
for paid or unpaid employment, or for additional preparation for a career
requiring other than a baccalaureate or advanced degree.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

855 Job Coaching: Job coaching is a service that provides assistance and
guidance to an employee who may be experiencing difficulty with one or
more aspects of the daily job tasks and functions. The service is provided by
a job coach who is highly successful, skilled and trained on the job who can
determine how the employee that is experiencing difficulty learns best and
formulate a training plan to improve job performance.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 22

855 Job Coaching: Job coaching is a service that provides assistance and
guidance to an employee who may be experiencing difficulty with one or
more aspects of the daily job tasks and functions. The service is provided by
a job coach who is highly successful, skilled and trained on the job who can
determine how the employee that is experiencing difficulty learns best and
formulate a training plan to improve job performance.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

860 Mentoring: Mentoring is a sustained coaching relationship between a
student and teacher through ongoing involvement. The mentor offers
support, guidance, encouragement and assistance as the learner encounters
challenges with respect to a particular area such as acquisition of job skills.
Mentoring can be either formal, as in planned, structured instruction, or
informal that occurs naturally through friendship, counseling, and collegiality
in a casual, unplanned way.

X

5 CCR  Section
3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions AdoptedModified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

865 Agency linkages (referral and placement): Service coordination and case
management that facilitates the linkage of individualized education programs
under this part and individualized family service plans under part C with
individualized service plans under multiple Federal and State programs, such
as title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (vocational rehabilitation), title XIX
of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), and title XVI of the Social Security Act
(supplemental security income).

X

30 EC  Section 56341.5
(f);

 34 CFR  Section
300.344 (3)(b)

870 Travel training (includes mobility training)
X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;
34 CFR  sections

300.39 (c)(7)
890 Other transition services: These services may include program

coordination, case management and meetings, and crafting linkages
between schools and between schools and postsecondary agencies.

X

900** Other special education/related services: Any other specialized service
required for a student with a disability to receive educational benefit. X

* B&PC –Business and Proessional Codes
    CCR –California Code of Regulations
    CFR –Code of Federal Regulations
    EC –Education Code
    GC –Government Code
** Use of CASEMIS Code 900 necessitates further explanation. Please list the
    other special education/related services to be provided as Code 900 on the
    form ASP-01b: Customized Service Descriptions.

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 22

* B&PC –Business and Proessional Codes
    CCR –California Code of Regulations
    CFR –Code of Federal Regulations
    EC –Education Code
    GC –Government Code
** Use of CASEMIS Code 900 necessitates further explanation. Please list the
    other special education/related services to be provided as Code 900 on the
    form ASP-01b: Customized Service Descriptions.

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 12 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 12 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 13 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 13 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 14 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 14 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 15 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 15 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 16 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 16 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 17 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 17 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 18 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 18 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 19 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 19 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 20 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 20 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 21 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 21 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 22 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 22 of 22



1

California Department of Education                                                                      Special Education Division
ABP–01 (rev March 2014)

CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL BUDGET PLAN
FISCAL YEAR 2014–15

1. Check one, as applicable:
[    ]  Single District [    ]  Multiple District [    ]  District/County

County-District-School Code/Special
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Code

SELPA Name Application Date

SELPA Address SELPA City SELPA Zip code

Name SELPA Director (Print) SELPA Director’s Telephone
Number

(       )
2. CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY DESIGNATED AS ADMINISTRATIVE AND FISCAL

AGENCY FOR THIS PROGRAM (Responsible Local Agency [RLA] or Administrative Unit
[AU])

RLA/AU Name Name/Title of RLA Superintendent Telephone Number
(       )

RLA/AU Street Address RLA/AU City RLA/AU Zip code

Date of Governing Board Approval

Certification of Approval of Annual Budget Plan Pursuant to California Education
Code Section 56205(b)

I certify that the Annual Budget Plan was developed according to the SELPA’s local
plan governance and policy making process. Notice of this public hearing was posted in
each school within the SELPA at least 15 days prior to the hearing.

The Annual Budget Plan was presented for public hearing on ____________________.

Adopted this day of , 20___.

Signed: ________________________________
RLA/AU Superintendent



2

California Department of Education                                                                      Special Education Division
ABP–01 (rev March 2014)

ANNUAL BUDGET PLAN
FISCAL YEAR 2014–15

The Annual Budget Plan shall identify expected expenditures for all items required by
this part as listed below. The Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS) codes
provide source information from the local educational agency (LEA) reporting.

Reference/Label Instructions Estimated
Totals

A Funds received in accordance with Chapter 7.2
(commencing with California Education Code
[EC] Section 56836)
(Special Education Program Funding)

SACS Resource Code
6500 (State),
3300–3499 (Federal)
6512–6535 (General
Fund)

B Administrative costs of the plan SACS Goal Code 5001
Function 2100

C Special Education services to pupils
with: (1) severe disabilities, and (2) low-
incidence disabilities

SACS Goal Code 5710

SACS Goal Code 5730

SACS Goal Code 5750

D Special education services to pupils
with non-severe disabilities SACS Goal Code 5770

E Supplemental aids and services to meet the
individual needs of pupils placed in regular
education classrooms and environments

Any SACS Goal Code
with SACS Function
Code 11301

F Regionalized operations and services, and
direct instructional support by program
specialists in accordance with Article 6
(commencing with Section 56836.23) of Chapter
7.2. (SELPA Program Specialists Funding)

SACS Goal Code 5050

SACS Goal Code 5060

G The use of property taxes allocated to the
special education local plan area pursuant to EC
Section 2572.

Statement is included in Local Plan

1 Function Activity Classification can be found at
http://www.cde.ca.gov/be/ag/ag/yr08/mar08item24a6.doc

FOR CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY

Received by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:  Date: ________ By: ______



California Department of Education                                                               Special Education Division
Revised March 2014

Annual Budget and Service Plan

Checklist of Items to Submit to the
California Department of Education by June 30, 2014

Annual Budget Plan:

Form ABP–01: Certification of Annual Budget Plan

Annual Budget Plan–Page 2

Copy of Public Hearing Notice

Annual Service Plan:

Form ASP–03: Certification of Annual Service Plan

Form ASP–01a: California Special Education Management Information System
(CASEMIS) Service Descriptions

Form ASP–01b: Modified or Customized CASEMIS Descriptions

Description of CASEMIS Code 900, if applicable

Physical Location of Services Plan–Form ASP–02a

Annual Service Plan (001)

Other Facilities (002)

Infant Services (003)

Pre-School Services (004)

Facility 32: County Jails Included in the Plan

Copy of Public Hearing Notice



California Department of Education Special Education Division
ASP–03 (rev March 2014)

CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN

1. Check one, as applicable:
[ X ]  Single District [    ]  Multiple District [    ]  District/County

County-District-School Code/Special
Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) Code
46-10462

SELPA Name

Sierra County SELPA

Application Date

June 18, 2014

SELPA Address
109 Beckwith Street

SELPA City
Loyalton

SELPA Zip code
96118

Name SELPA Director (Print)

Marlene Mongolo

SELPA Director’s Telephone
Number

( 530 ) 993-4485
2. CERTIFICATION BY AGENCY DESIGNATED AS ADMINISTRATIVE AND FISCAL AGENCY

FOR THIS PROGRAM (Responsible Local Agency [RLA] or Administrative Unit [AU])
RLA/AU Name
Sierra County Office of Education

Name/Title of RLA Superintendent (Type)
Merrill Grant, Ed.D

Telephone Number
( 530 ) 993-1660

RLA/AU Street Address
109 Beckwith Street

RLA/AU City
Loyalton

RLA/AU Zip code
96118

Date of Governing Board Approval

June 18, 2014

Certification of Approval of Annual Service Plan Pursuant to California Education Code
Section 56205(b)

I certify that the Annual Service Plan was developed according to the SELPA’s local plan governance
and policy making process. Notice of this public hearing was posted in each district within the SELPA
at least 15 days prior to the hearing.

The Annual Service Plan was presented for public hearing on __June 18, 2014________________.

Adopted this 18th day of June , 2014_.

Signed: ________________________________
RLA/AU Superintendent

FOR CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION USE ONLY

Received by the State Superintendent of Public Instruction:  Date: ____ By:



Page ____  of  _____

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP–02a 003 (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Infant Services (003)
Location Services Provided at this Location

List the site name and type of
facility providing services to

students enrolled in the LEA.

Type
of

Facility

List the California Special Education Management
Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with

each service that is provided at the location listed in the
left-hand column.

None

Use these codes to identify the type of facility where Infant Services (ages 0–3) are provided:
00–No School (Ages 0–5 only) 10–Public Day School
11–Public Residential School 19–Other Public School/Facilities
40–Home 45–Hospital Facility
62–Child Development or Child Care Facility 65–Extended Day Care



Page ____ of  _____

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP–02a 002 (rev March 2014)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Other Facilities (002)
Location Services Provided at this Location

List the site name and type of
facility providing services to

students enrolled in the LEA.

Type
of

Facility

List the California Special Education Information
System (CASEMIS) code associated with each service

that is provided at the location listed in the left-hand
column

Sierra County Jail 32 330 830

Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22:
30–Juvenile Court School 32–Correctional Institution or

Incarceration Facility
40–Home Instruction

45–Hospital Facility 50–Community College 51–Adult Education Program
70–Nonpublic Day School 71/72–Nonpublic Residential School 79–Nonpublic Agency



 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-009 

 
SET SUPERINTENDENT SALARY 

 

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent of Schools shall be appointed by the 

Sierra County Board of Education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Constitution, Article 9, Section 3.1(b) authorizes the 

County Board to set the County Superintendent’s salary; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code §35034 and §35035 the County 
Superintendent may serve as District Superintendent, chief executive officer and 
secretary of the District Governing Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent of Schools may serve as both County and 
District Superintendent; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County Superintendent salary will be set at $20,917, per annum, 

effective July 1, 2014; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that effective upon being appointed 

County Superintendent of Schools effective July 1, 2014, the Sierra County 
Superintendent of Schools shall be paid $20,917 for services July 1, 2014, 

through June 30, 2015. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sierra County Board of Education on this 18th 

day of June, 2014, by the following votes: 
 
 

AYES:   
NOES:   

ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
VACANT:  NONE 

 
 
 __________________________ 

           Patricia Hall, Clerk 
 





Local Control and Accountability Plan

Sierra County Office of Education

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017

04/22/2014 (revised 05/07/2014)

1



Introduction:

LEA:
Sierra County Office of Education

Contact:
Merrill Grant, Ed.D.
Superintendent
mgrant@spjusd.org
(530) 993-1660 *837

LCAP Years:
July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017

2



Section 1: Stakeholder Engagement

Involvement Process:

An extensive review of documents written with wide stakeholder involvement including Single Plans for Student
Achievement from schools in our county, WASC Reports and annual updates written for each of our secondary schools,
and  documents such as our Local Education Accountability Plans, our Strategic Plans, Board Goals, and the results of
the last California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) provided input.  In addition, minutes of County-District Advisory
Committee (C-DAC) meetings and School Site Council meetings have been reviewed for input from stakeholders that
would relate to the development of this first year's LCAP.  A foster parent telephone survey was conducted to gain input
from this subgroup.  Consultation occurred with a Resource Specialist regarding services to students with disabilities and
related goals.  A public hearing on our proposed LCAP is being held at the May 13, 2014, Sierra County Board meeting. 
As this plan is developed over time, stakeholder involvement will be calendarized and more focused on the LCAP at all
levels in the district and communities served by Sierra County Office of Educaiton. 

Stakeholders, while not specifically looking at data or metrics for the LCAP, have spent time in each of their respective
roles on various committees, boards, and councils and have viewed much of the data that is considered in setting goals
for the LCAP.  Stakeholders have looked at test scores on standardized tests, data reported on the School Accountability
Report Cards, and in WASC reports where data is a key consideration as evidence of learning.  So, for the first year,
stakeholders have been made aware through a variety of avenues of the data and metrics surrounding our schools.

Because the state priorities are new to all of us, stakeholders will be learning along with us as we move forward.  Priority
goals from the various reports mentioned above that were written with extensive stakeholder involvement have been
incorporated into this plan.  Stakeholder input has been a major piece in setting our goals and priorities.

We have broad representation on all of our Site Councils and WASC Committees, as well as our County-District Advisory
Committee.  Our small county presently has three foster youth, two who just enrolled in our district this month.  These
parents participated in a telephone survey in April 2014.  Students of parents who have been identified to have special
needs meet at least annually for their child's Independent Education Program (IEP) meetings.   At these meetings, parent
input is always requested and noted.  Also, representatives of these populations are requested to participate in our
organized councils and committees.  We do not have large enough special population groups to require the formation of
special groups including an English Learner Advisory Council, but we seek input at all times from members of special
populations.  English Learners and their parents participate widely in our schools.  Because of our socio-economic
population, we run school-wide Title I programs that include all students and residually all parents.

We are small enough that we seek and highly value input from all parents, students, staff, and other stakeholders of our
county.  We recognize the value of each stakeholder in making our schools the center and showcase of our rural
communities.

Impact on LCAP:

Personal telephone interviews with all of our foster parents held in April 2014 led to revisions in our county actions
related to foster youth, specifically the provision of a special enrollment procedure for parents bringing foster children to
our schools, a one-page summary of foster student services and policies that differ from the general student population
for parents and staff, and annual training of staff related to foster youth in our county.

A personal interview on April 16 with a Resource Specialist employed by our County helped ensure that goals were written

3



to address the needs of students who have been identified with disabilities.  Because of this interview we specifically
address the goal that all students, including those with disabilities, are placed in the least restrictive learning
environment and the most broad course of study available to them while still meeting their learning needs.

Other stakeholder input affected the goals through their involvement on our county councils, School Site Councils, and
WASC committees since we completed a survey of all the different goals written over the past few years to blend into our
County LCAP goals.

Every annual update after the first year will receive planned, direct, focused input from all stakeholders who will be
encouraged to participate in our calendar of stakeholder events.  Stakeholders will receive meaningful data and be
provided with multiple means of communicating with the county personnel who will work on the annual revisions and
updates. 

4



Section 2: Goals and Progress Indicators

Goal:
All students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development.

Identified Need:
All teachers are appropriately assigned and are fully credentialed for any core subject they are teaching and are qualified
to have English Learners in their classrooms.

All students have access to standards-aligned instructional materials, and all courses are aligned to state standards and
have been reviewed annually, updated as needed, and adopted by the local governing board.

All students have a broad course of study available to them, are placed in the least restrictive learning environment, and
have multiple pathways to meet their academic needs.

All expelled students have alternate pathways available to meet their academic needs.

All foster youth benefit from coordination of services between schools, schools and local agencies serving foster youth,
and schools and the court system.

All pupils with disabilities have an Individualized Educational Program (IEP) that meets their intellectual, social,
emotional, and physical development and provides them with appropriate services.

Identified Metric:
Percent of teachers who are fully credentialed for any core subject they teach and who have certification to teach English
Learners.

Percent of courses that have adopted instructional materials and textbooks and updated course outlines to meet the
California Common Core State Standards.

Percent of expelled students who meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

Percent of foster parents indicating on an annual telephone survey that foster youth are being served appropriately.

Percent of students in annual audit of IEPs who are receiving appropriate services.

Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Basic; Implementation of State
Standards; Course access; Expelled
pupils; Foster youth

Applicable Student Subgroup(s):
A l l

School(s) Affected:
A l l

What will be different/improved for students?

Year 2014-15:
80 percent of teachers are fully credentialed for any core subject they teach and have certification to teach English
Learners.

20 percent of courses have adopted instructional materials and textbooks and updated course outlines to meet the
California Common Core State Standards.

90 percent of expelled students meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

100 percent of foster parents indicate on an annual telephone survey that foster youth are being served appropriately.

100 percent of students in an annual audit of IEPs are receiving appropriate services.

Year 2015-16:

5



90 percent of teachers are fully credentialed for any core subject they teach and have certification to teach English
Learners.

40 percent of courses have adopted instructional materials and textbooks and updated course outlines to meet the
California Common Core State Standards.

95 percent of expelled students meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

100 percent of foster parents indicate on an annual telephone survey that foster youth are being served appropriately.

100 percent of students in an annual audit of IEPs are receiving appropriate services.

Year 2016-17:
100 percent of teachers are fully credentialed for any core subject they teach and have certification to teach English
Learners.

60 percent of courses have adopted instructional materials and textbooks and updated course outlines to meet the
California Common Core State Standards.

95 percent of expelled students meet their academic needs through alternative pathways.

100 percent of foster parents indicate on an annual telephone survey that foster youth are being served appropriately.

100 percent of students in an annual audit of IEPs are receiving appropriate services.

Goal:
All students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and characteristics needed
for success in college, career, and life.

Identified Need:
All administrators, teachers, and staff recognize their participation in student success, understand the power of
collaboration, and value professional development.

All students, including but not limited to our target populations, who need intensive intervention in ELA or mathematics,
are provided instruction using adopted intervention curriculum.

All students participate in a physical education program that promotes strength and conditioning, is age-appropriate, and
meets California Education Code guidelines for physical education programs.

All students in Kindergarten through Grade 9 receive instruction in Health aligned with the State Standards and County
adopted health curriculum.

Identified Metric:
Percent of schools meeting their AYP goals.
Percent of students in attendance daily, averaged.
Percent of students expelled in the year.
Percent of students who participate in California's Physical Fitness Testing who are within the Healthy Fitness Zone range.
Percent of K-8 students who demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at
the end of the year.

Percent of English Learners in our county who are reclassified Fluent English Proficient within five years of initial
enrollment.

Percent of students enrolled in intensive intervention in ELA and/or mathematics who achieve grade level competency

6



within two years.

Percent of county employees who participate in county-wide professional development activities.

Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Pupil achievement; Other pupil
outcomes

Applicable Student Subgroup(s):
A l l

School(s) Affected:
A l l

What will be different/improved for students?

Year 2014-15:
50% of schools meet their AYP goals.
80% or more of students are in attendance daily, averaged over the year.
5% or fewer of students are expelled during the year.
55% of our students who participate in California's Physical Fitness Testing are within the Healthy Fitness Zone range in at
least five of six areas.
90% of K-8 students demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at the end
of the year.

80% of English Learners in our county are reclassified Fluent English Proficient within five years of initial enrollment.

80% of students enrolled in intensive intervention in ELA and/or mathematics achieve grade level competency within two
years.

100% of county employees participate in county-wide professional development activities.

Year 2015-16:
75% of schools meet their AYP goals.
85% or more of students are in attendance daily, averaged over the year.
3% or fewer of students are expelled during the year.
60% of our students who participate in California's Physical Fitness Testing are within the Healthy Fitness Zone range in at
least five of six areas.
95% of K-8 students demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at the end
of the year.

90% of English Learners in our county are reclassified Fluent English Proficient within five years of initial enrollment.

90% of students enrolled in intensive intervention in ELA and/or mathematics achieve grade level competency within two
years.

100% of county employees participate in county-wide professional development activities.

Year 2016-17:
100% of schools meet their AYP goals.
90% or more of students are in attendance daily, averaged over the year.
3% or fewer of students are expelled during the year.
65% of our students who participate in California's Physical Fitness Testing are within the Healthy Fitness Zone range in at
least five of six areas.
95% of K-8 students demonstrate mastery of the academic skills needed for promotion to the next grade level at the end

7



of the year.

95% of English Learners in our county are reclassified Fluent English Proficient within five years of initial enrollment.

95% of students enrolled in intensive intervention in ELA and/or mathematics achieve grade level competency within two
years.

100% of county employees participate in county-wide professional development activities.

Goal:
All stakeholders are involved in promoting a district culture where student success is realized, communicated, and
celebrated.

Identified Need:
There is broad stakeholder representation on the County-District Advisory Committee (C-DAC).  Members of the C-DAC
are actively involved in school improvement and promotion, the public is invited to all C-DAC meetings, and the calendar
of C-DAC meetings is published to encourage broad stakeholder involvement.

Sierra County Board Meetings are regularly scheduled and offered via remote transmission to each school community to
provide for broad stakeholder participation.

Individualized Education Program (IEP) meetings are scheduled in advance to provide for inclusion of administrators,
teachers, parents, students, and other advocates.

Parent and student surveys will be administered as a means of receiving stakeholder input on county programs and
services from representatives of all student groups and subgroups.

County staff will be trained each year in California Education Code related to foster youth to ensure that required services
are provided.

Identified Metric:
Percent of subgroups represented on the County-District Advisory Committee (C-DAC).

Posting on the Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) website of the SCOE Calendar of four C-DAC meetings, two Read,
Review, and Recommend Community Forums, and monthly Sierra County Board of Trustees meetings.

Percent of parents returning the annual school climate survey.

Percent of students Grades 2-12 returning the annual school climate survey.

Number of stakeholders participating in the two annual LCAP Read, Review, and Recommend Community Forums.

Percent of foster parents participating in an annual telephone survey.

Percent of staff participating in staff training related to foster youth services.

Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Parent involvement; Pupil
engagement; School climate

Applicable Student Subgroup(s):
A l l

School(s) Affected:
A l l

What will be different/improved for students?

Year 2014-15:
75% of significant subgroups are represented on the County-District Advisory Committee (C-DAC) membership roll.

Four C-DAC meetings and monthly Sierra County Board of Trustees meetings are clearly indicated on the SCOE calendar

8



posted on the SCOE website.

25% of parents return the annual school climate survey.

70% of students return the annual school climate survey.

30 stakeholders participate in the annual LCAP Read, Review, and Recommend Community Forum.

80% of foster parents participate in an annual telephone survey.

85% of County staff receive training related to foster youth services.

Year 2015-16:
85% of significant subgroups are represented on the County-District Advisory Committee (C-DAC) membership roll.

Four C-DAC meetings and monthly Sierra County Board of Trustees meetings are clearly indicated on the SCOE calendar
posted on the SCOE website.

40% of parents return the annual school climate survey.

80% of students return the annual school climate survey.

40 stakeholders participate in the annual LCAP Read, Review, and Recommend Community Forum.

90% of foster parents participate in an annual telephone survey.

100% of County staff receive training related to foster youth services.

Year 2016-17:
100% of significant subgroups are represented on the County-District Advisory Committee (C-DAC) membership roll.

Four C-DAC meetings and monthly Sierra County Board of Trustees meetings are clearly indicated on the SCOE calendar
posted on the SCOE website.

60% of parents return the annual school climate survey.

90% of students return the annual school climate survey.

50 stakeholders participate in the annual LCAP Read, Review, and Recommend Community Forum.

100% of foster parents participate in an annual telephone survey.

100% of County staff receive training related to foster youth services.

9



Section 3: Actions, Services, and Expenditures

Goal:
All students receive instruction and services to support their intellectual, social, emotional, and physical development.

Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Basic; Implementation of State Standards; Course access; Expelled pupils; Foster youth

A. Annual Actions

Actions and Services: Continue to support Visual and Performing Arts (VAPA) in all schools.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Contracted
Services for VAPA
at all school sites
for all students

$14,000 $14,000 $14,000

Sierra Schools
Foundation Local
Revenue 9010 and
Unrestricted
General Fund

Unrestricted funds to match
Sierra Schoool Foundation
Grant to provide various
VAPA programs in all district
schools to all student
population. 

Action/Service
Total: $14,000 $14,000 $14,000    

Actions and Services: Continue to support the Independent Study Program and Sierra Pass Continuation High School as
alternative pathways.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Administrative
Salary $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 Unrestricted

General Fund

To assign a staff with an
administrative credential as
site administrator to Sierra
Pass and oversee district
ISP program. 

Action/Service
Total: $12,000 $12,000 $12,000    

Actions and Services: Continue to support Career Technical Education in grades 7-12.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Funding Source Note

10



2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017

Instructor Salary and
Benefits for
Construction/Building
Trades

$45,000 $45,000 $45,000
Education
Protection
Account

 

Career Specialist Salary $8,000 $4,000 $4,000

Education
Protection
Account, Resource
1 4 0 0

 

Construction/Building
Trades and Greenhouse
Supplies

$4,000 $4,000 $4,000

Education
Protection
Account, Resource
1 4 0 0

 

Action/Service Total: $57,000 $53,000 $53,000    

Actions and Services: Seek creative ways to expand Career Technical Education opportunities and pathways for
students.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Using greenhouses
for K-12 science,
health, and
sustainable
agriculture projects

$5,116 $2,983 $1,116 Education
Protection Account  

Action/Service
Total: $5,116 $2,983 $1,116    

Actions and Services: Have the Foster Youth Service Coordinator handle annual staff training.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Staff to absorb
duties as a Foster
Youth Coordinator
(FYC)

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 Unrestricted
General Funds

FYC will prepare training
materials for District and
County staff and parents and
provide annual training. 

Action/Service
Total: $ 0 $ 0 $ 0    

11



Actions and Services: Services for Preschool and K-12 students with disabilities.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Certificated and
Psychologist
salaries and
benefits. Contracted
services for other
services needed to
comply with
students
Individualized
Education
Programs.
Operating expenses
for preschool
resource facility.

$595,000 $605,000 $615,000

Restricted Federal
and State Special
Educations Appmt.
and Unrestricted
General Fund.

 

Action/Service
Total: $595,000 $605,000 $615,000    

B. Additional Annual Actions

Goal:
All students engage in a rigorous curriculum and acquire the knowledge, critical thinking skills, and characteristics needed
for success in college, career, and life.

Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Pupil achievement; Other pupil outcomes

A. Annual Actions

Actions and Services: Professional Learning Community (PLC) activities are scheduled into the school calendar.
Certificated staff will attend professional development programs/conferences.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Travel & Conference $2,500 $2,500 $2,500

State Special
Education, Common
Core and
Workability

PLC cost is included in the
staff members base salary. 

12



Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Action/Service
Total: $2,500 $2,500 $2,500    

Actions and Services: Continue to fund instructional aides to work with students who need academic support.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Instructional aide
salary and benefits
for all school sites

$90,000 $90,000 $90,000
Restricted State
Special Education
Appmt.

 

Action/Service
Total: $90,000 $90,000 $90,000    

Actions and Services: Consider training a staff member to serve as the PE lead teacher for the County.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Action/Service
Total:    

Actions and Services: Ensure that the adopted health curriculum is being delivered to students K-9.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Contract with a
credentialed nurse $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 Unrestricted

General Funds  

Action/Service
Total: $6,000 $6,000 $6,000    

B. Additional Annual Actions

Goal:
All stakeholders are involved in promoting a district culture where student success is realized, communicated, and
celebrated.

13



Related State and Local Priorities:
State: Parent involvement; Pupil engagement; School climate

A. Annual Actions

Actions and Services: Administer foster parent, school climate and other parent engagement surveys. Schedule
community forum meetings and find ways to retain C-DAC members.

Level of Service: County-Wide Years: Year 1; Year 2; Year 3

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source Note

Advertisement,
communication,
website stipend,
telecommunication
equipment repairs, and
supplies

$5,200 $5,200 $5,200 Unrestricted
General Funds  

Action/Service Total: $5,200 $5,200 $5,200    

B. Additional Annual Actions

C. Concentration and Supplemental Funds:

N /A

D. Proportionality of Services:

N /A

14



Expenditures and Funding Sources

Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source

A. Annual Actions

Goal: Goal 1: Conditions of Learning

Action/Service: Broad Courses of Study Available to All Students

Contracted Services for VAPA
at all school sites for all
students

$14,000 $14,000 $14,000
Sierra Schools Foundation
Local Revenue 9010 and
Unrestricted General Fund

Action/Service Subtotal: $14,000 $14,000 $14,000  

Action/Service: Broad Courses of Study Available to All Students

Administrative Salary $12,000 $12,000 $12,000 Unrestricted General Fund

Action/Service Subtotal: $12,000 $12,000 $12,000  

Action/Service: Broad Courses of Study Available to All Students

Instructor Salary and Benefits
for Construction/Building Trades $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 Education Protection

Account

Career Specialist Salary $8,000 $4,000 $4,000 Education Protection
Account, Resource 1400

Construction/Building Trades
and Greenhouse Supplies $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 Education Protection

Account, Resource 1400

Action/Service Subtotal: $57,000 $53,000 $53,000  

Action/Service: Broad Courses of Study Available to All Students

Using greenhouses for K-12
science, health, and sustainable
agriculture projects

$5,116 $2,983 $1,116 Education Protection
Account

Action/Service Subtotal: $5,116 $2,983 $1,116  

Action/Service: Foster Youth Services

Staff to absorb duties as a
Foster Youth Coordinator (FYC) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 Unrestricted General

Funds

Action/Service Subtotal: $ 0 $ 0 $ 0  

Action/Service: Services for all District Pupils with Disabilities

Certificated and Psychologist $595,000 $605,000 $615,000 Restricted Federal and

15



Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source

salaries and benefits.
Contracted services for other
services needed to comply with
students Individualized
Education Programs. Operating
expenses for preschool resource
facility.

State Special Educations
Appmt. and Unrestricted
General Fund.

Action/Service Subtotal: $595,000 $605,000 $615,000  

Goal: Goal 2: Pupil Outcomes

Action/Service: Professional Development

Travel & Conference $2,500 $2,500 $2,500
State Special Education,
Common Core and
Workability

Action/Service Subtotal: $2,500 $2,500 $2,500  

Action/Service: Student Intervention

Instructional aide salary and
benefits for all school sites $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 Restricted State Special

Education Appmt.

Action/Service Subtotal: $90,000 $90,000 $90,000  

Action/Service: Physical Education

Action/Service Subtotal:  

Action/Service: Health Education

Contract with a credentialed
nurse $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 Unrestricted General

Funds

Action/Service Subtotal: $6,000 $6,000 $6,000  

Goal: Goal 3: Engagement

Action/Service: Stakeholder Engagement

Advertisement, communication,
website stipend,
telecommunication equipment
repairs, and supplies

$5,200 $5,200 $5,200 Unrestricted General
Funds

Action/Service Subtotal: $5,200 $5,200 $5,200  

B. Additional Annual Actions

Goal: Goal 1: Conditions of Learning

16



Expenditures Year 1
2014-2015

Year 2
2015-2016

Year 3
2016-2017 Funding Source

Goal: Goal 2: Pupil Outcomes

Goal: Goal 3: Engagement

17















































































































































POLICY GUIDESHEET
April 2014
Page 1 of 4

BP 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property
(BP revised)

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 86, 2013) which requires districts to first offer to sell surplus
district property to a charter school that projects an in-district average daily attendance of at least 80
students, has requested to be notified of surplus property to be offered for sale or lease, and intends to
use the property exclusively to provide instruction or instructional support. Policy also reflects NEW
LAW (AB 308, 2013) which authorizes the State Allocation Board, under specified conditions, to
reclaim funds from districts selling any property purchased, constructed, or modernized within the
previous 10 years with funds received from a state school facilities funding program.

BP 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools
(BP revised)

Mandated policy expands list of prohibited products to include electronic hookahs and other vapor-
emitting devices, with or without nicotine content, that mimic the use of tobacco products. Policy also
deletes the option for districts not receiving Tobacco Use Prevention Education (TUPE) funds to allow
smoking outside on school or district grounds or in designated employee breakrooms, although non-
TUPE districts may continue to adopt such policy language at their discretion.

BP/AR 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing of Bus Drivers (Revised 8/13)

MANDATED policy revised to more directly reflect prohibitions against drug and alcohol use and clarify that
alcohol testing conducted under the federal testing program should follow federal law re: the blood alcohol
concentration level that triggers specified consequences. Policy also adds language on confidentiality of test
results, reports to the Department of Motor Vehicles, option to impose rehabilitation or return-to-duty program,
and option to establish a voluntary self-identification program.

New MANDATED regulation reflects requirements pertaining to pre-employment, post-accident, random,
reasonable suspicion, return-to-duty, and follow-up testing. Regulation also adds definitions of key terms and
designation of "designated employer representative,"/expands material on driver notifications formerly in BP.

E 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications
(E revised)

Exhibit updated to (1) reflect NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013) requiring the uniform complaint procedures
notice to include information about LCAP requirements; (2) update notice requirements related to
family care and medical leave and renumber cites to Title 2 regulations pursuant to Register 2013, No.
40; (3) reflect NEW TITLE 5 REGULATIONS (Register 2014, No. 14) which require notice re:
employment status change reports to be given when an allegation of misconduct is pending; (4) revise
notice on postretirement earnings limitation to include employment restrictions pursuant to NEW LAW
(AB 1379, 2013); (5) add notification of teachers when school is identified for restructuring under Title
I program improvement; (6) add notification of bus drivers when their driver's license, driver's
certificate, or medical certificate is expiring; and (7) move notice of vehicle idling limitations to AR
3542 - School Bus Drivers.

AR 4117.14/4317.14 - Postretirement Employment
(AR revised)

Regulation updated to clarify the contents of the board resolution required in order to hire a member of
the California State Teachers' Retirement System within 180 days of his/her retirement. Regulation
reflects NEW LAW (AB 1381, 2013) which (1) defines "financial inducement" for the purpose of
determining eligibility of a retiree to receive an exemption from the 180-day waiting period and (2)



extends the compensation limit to other payments (e.g., deferred compensation plans, etc.) to prevent
payment in excess of the zero-dollar limit for retired member activities performed within the 180-day
waiting period. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (AB 1379, 2013) which requires districts to notify
retired individuals of employment restrictions.

AR 4117.7/4317.14 - Employment Status Reports
(AR revised)

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 449, 2013) and NEW TITLE 5 REGULATIONS
(Register 2014, No. 14) which (1) require submission of an employment status report to the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) while an allegation of misconduct is pending; (2) subject
the superintendent to adverse action by the CTC if he/she fails to submit a report; and (3) clarify that
changes in employment status due to unsatisfactory performance or a reduction in force are not
reportable.

BP 5131.62 - Tobacco
(BP revised)

Policy updated to prohibit student possession or use of electronic hookahs and other vapor-emitting
devices, with or without nicotine content, that mimic the use of tobacco products. Policy also
recommends provision of counseling, intensive education, or other intervention services to assist in the
cessation of tobacco use as an alternative to suspension for tobacco possession.

BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process
(BP/AR revised)

Mandated policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013) which requires development of LCAP
goals and actions addressing school climate and NEW FEDERAL GUIDANCE encouraging
appropriate interventions and supports rather than exclusionary discipline practices. Policy also adds
optional language limiting the use of suspension for willful defiance or disruption of school activities,
and deletes option which limited the board's authority to suspend enforcement of the expulsion order.

Mandated regulation reorganized for clarity and updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 256, 2013) which
clarifies that a student may be disciplined for bullying by means of electronic act even when the act
originated off campus. Regulation also includes a new optional section on "Stipulated Expulsion."

E 5145.6 - Parental Notifications
(E revised)

Exhibit updated to delete notices related to Advanced Placement exam fees, gifted and talented
education, and intensive instruction for students who fail to pass the high school exit exam by the end of
grade 12, as those programs were eliminated by NEW LAW (AB 97, 2013). Exhibit also deletes special
education notices re: behavioral intervention plan and the California Modified Assessment, pursuant to
NEW TITLE 5 REGULATIONS (Register 2013, No. 42 and Register 2014, No. 7). Exhibit adds
notices related to (1) student's participation in state testing and option to request exemption, (2)
voluntary enrollment in continuation education pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 570, 2013), and (3)
tobacco-free schools policy and enforcement procedures. Legal cites to state regulations re: functional
behavioral assessment and emergency interventions renumbered pursuant to Register 2013, No. 42.

BB 9324 - Minutes and Recordings
(BB revised)

Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 751, 2013) which requires that minutes of board meetings
report the vote or abstention of each member present for the action. Bylaw also adds optional space for
the district to specify the position responsible for signing the minutes after approval by the board.



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Sale Or Lease Of District-Owned Real Property

BP 3280
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3280(a)

SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY

The Governing Board of Education believes that the district should utilize its facilities and
resources in the most economical and practical manner.  The Superintendent or designee shall
periodically study the current and projected use of all district facilities to ensure the efficient
utilization of space andfor the effective delivery of instruction.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings)
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities)

Upon determination that district property is no longer needed, or may not be needed until some
future time, the Board shall first submit a report to the local planning agency as to what real
property the district intends to offer for sale or lease. Not less than 40 days after issuance of the
report to the local planning agency, and prior to entering into any agreement for sale or lease of
district real property, the Board shall offer to sell or lease district-owned real property in
accordance with priorities and procedures specified in applicable law. (Education Code 17230,
17387-17391, 17457.5, 17464, 17485-17500; Government Code 54222, 65402)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education)

Prior to the sale or lease of any surplus real property, the Board shall appoint a district advisory
committee to advise the Board regarding the use or disposition of schools or school building
space which is not needed for school purposes.  (Education Code 17388-17389)

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

In addition, when selling real property purchased, constructed, or modernized with funds
received within the past 10 years from a school facilities funding program, the Board shall
consider whether any of the proceeds from the sale will need to be returned to the State
Allocation Board (SAB) pursuant to Education Code 17462.3.

Resolution of Intention to Sell or Lease

Before ordering the sale or lease of any real property, the Board shall adopt a resolution by a
two-thirds vote of all of its members at a regular,regularly scheduled open meeting.  The



2

resolution shall describe the property proposed to be sold or leased in such a manner as to
identify it, specify the minimum price or rent, describe the terms upon which it will be sold or
leased, and specify the commission or rate, if any, which the Board will pay to a licensed real
estate broker out of the minimum price or rent.  The resolution shall fix a time, not less than
three weeks thereafter, for a public meeting, held at the Board's regular meeting place, at which
sealed proposals to purchase or lease will be received and considered.  (Education Code 17466)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice of the adoption of the resolution and of the
time and place of the meeting that will be held to consider bids by posting copies of the
resolution, signed by the Board, in three public places not less than 15 days before the date of the
meeting. In addition, the notice shall be published at least once a week for three successive
weeks before the meeting, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the county in which
the district is located, if such a newspaper exists.   (Education Code 17469)

In accordance with Education Code 17470, the Superintendent or designee shall take reasonable
steps to provide notification to the former owners of the property of the district's intent to sell it
in accordance with Education Code 17470.

Acceptance/Rejection of Bids

At the public meeting specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease property, the Board
shall open, examine, and declare all sealed bids.  Before accepting anya written proposal, the
Board shall call for oral bids in accordance with law.  (Education Code 17472, 17473)

The Board may reject any and all bids, either written or oral, and withdraw the properties from
sale when the Board determines that rejection is in the best public interest. If no proposals are
submitted or the submitted proposals do not conform to all the terms and conditions specified in
the resolution of intention to lease, the Board may lease the property in accordance with
Education Code 17477. (Education Code 17476, 17477)

Of the proposals submitted by responsible bidders which conform to all terms and conditions
specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease, the Board shall finally accept the highest
bid after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker, unless the
Board accepts a higher oral bid or rejects all bids.  (Education Code 17472)

The final acceptance of the bid may be made either at the same meeting specified in the
resolution or at any adjourned/continued meeting held within 10 days.  Upon acceptance of the
bid, the Board may adopt a resolution of acceptance that directs the Board president, or any other
Board member, to execute the deed or lease and to deliver the document upon performance and
compliance by the successful bidder of all of the terms and conditions of the contract.
(Education Code 17475-17478)

(cf. 1431 - Waivers)
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Use of Proceeds



3

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the proceeds from the sale, or lease with an
option to purchase, of district surplus property are used in accordance with law.  (Education
Code 17462; 2 CCR 1700)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)

Pursuant to the authorization in Education Code 17463.7, the district may expend proceeds from
the sale of surplus real property, along with the proceeds from any personal property located on
that real property, for any one-time general fund purpose(s). Prior to exercisingBefore the
district exercises this authority, the Board shall certify to the State Allocation Board that:
(Education Code 17463.7)

1
1. The Board shall submit documents to the SAB certifying that:

a. The district has no major deferred maintenance requirements not covered by
existing capital outlay resources.

(cf. 3111 - Deferred Maintenance Funds)

2b. The sale of real property pursuant to Education Code 17463.7 does not violate the
provisions of a local bond act.

(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

3c. The real property is not suitable to meet projected school construction needs for
the next 10 years.

Prior to exercising this authority, 2.The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at
a regularly scheduled meeting, a plan for expending these one-time resources. The plan
shall identify the source and use of the funds and shall describe the reasons that the
expenditure shall not result in ongoing fiscal obligations for the district. (Education Code
17463.7)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
17219-17224 Acquisition of property not utilized as school site; nonuse payments; exemptions
17230-17234  Surplus property
17385  Conveyances to and from school districts
17387-17391  Advisory committees for use of excess school facilities
17400-17429  Leasing property
17430-17447  Leasing facilities
17453  Lease of surplus district property
17455-17484  Sale or lease of real property, especially:
17457.5  Offer to charter school



4

17462.3  State Allocation Board program to reclaim funds
17463.7  Proceeds for general fund purposes
17485-17500  Surplus school playground (Naylor Act)
17515-17526  Joint occupancy
17527-17535  Joint use of district facilities
33050  Request for waiver
38130-38139  Civic Center Act
GOVERNMENT CODE
54220-54232  Surplus land, especially:
54222  Offer to sell or lease property
54950-54963  Brown Act, especially:
54952  Legislative body, definition
PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE
21000-21177  California Environmental Quality Act
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
1700  Definitions related to surplus property
COURT DECISIONS
San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified School
District, (2006) 139 Cal.App. 4th 1356

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Closing a School Best Practices Guide
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS
Unused Site Program Handbook, May 2008
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, School Facilities Planning Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa
Coalition for Adequate School Housing:  http://www.cashnet.org
Office of Public School Construction: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 14, 2011
revised: September 13, 2011
revised:  June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Tobacco-Free Schools

Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3513.3(a)

TOBACCO-FREE SCHOOLS

The Governing Board recognizes that smoking and other uses of tobacco and nicotine products
constitute a serious public health hazard and are inconsistent with district goals to provide a healthy
environment for students and staff.

(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety)
(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness)
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)
(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

The Board prohibits the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased buildings, on
district property, and in district vehicles.  (Health and Safety Code 104420; Labor Code 6404.5; 20
USC 6083)

This prohibition applies to all employees, students, and visitors at any school-sponsored instructional
program, activity, or athletic event held on or off district property.  Any written joint use agreement
governing community use of district facilities or grounds shall include notice of the district's tobacco-
free schools policy and consequences for violations of the policy.

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)
(cf. 1330.1 - Joint Use Agreements)

Note:  State law does not define "tobacco products" for purposes of the district's tobacco-free schools policy. The CDE's
web site recommends that a district's policy define "tobacco products" to include products containing tobacco or
nicotine, including nicotine delivery devices such as electronic cigarettes, electronic hookah, and other vapor-emitting
devices.

Prohibited products include any product containing tobacco or nicotine, including, but not limited to,
cigarettes, cigars, miniature cigars, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew, clove cigarettes, betel, and
nicotine delivery systems such as electronic cigarettes, electronic hookahs, and other vapor -emitting
devices, with or without nicotine content, that mimic the use of tobacco products any time.  Exceptions
may be made for the use or possession of prescription nicotine products that have been approved by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration, such as nicotine
patch or gum.

Smoking or use of any tobacco-related products and/or disposal of any tobacco-related waste is
prohibited within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet of the



playground. In addition, any form of intimidation, threat, or retaliation against a person for attempting
to enforce this policy is prohibited. (Health and Safety Code 104495)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
48900  Grounds for suspension/expulsion
48901  Prohibition against tobacco use by students
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
39002  Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources
104350-104495  Tobacco use prevention, especially:
104495  Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds
119405  Unlawful to sell or furnish electronic cigarettes to minors
LABOR CODE
3300  Employer, definition
6304  Safe and healthful workplace
6404.5  Occupational safety and health; use of tobacco products
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
6083  Nonsmoking policy for children's services
7100-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21
1140.1-1140.34  Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors
PERB RULINGS
Eureka Teachers Assn. v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC 23168)
CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School District (1989) PERB
Order #750 (13 PERC 20147)

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Prevention:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at
California Department of Education, Tobacco-Free School District Certification:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at/tobaccofreecert.asp
California Department of Public Health, Tobacco Control:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco
Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board:  http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/oshsb.html
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Loyalton, California
revised:   May 10, 2011
revised:   January 14, 2014
revised:   June 18, 2014



1

All Personnel BP 4112.42
4212.42

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING FOR SCHOOL BUS DRIVERS 4312.42

Note: State and federal law (Vehicle Code 34520; 49 CFR 382.101-382.605) require that any district employing school
bus drivers establish a drug and alcohol testing program, with specified components, applicable to bus drivers and any
other drivers of a commercial motor vehicle weighing over 26,000 pounds or designed to transport 16 or more
passengers including the driver. All testing must be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR 40.1-40.413.  For further
information, see the web sites of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) and the California Highway Patrol
(CHP).

In addition, Vehicle Code 34520.3 requires drivers of school transportation vehicles (i.e., vehicles that are not school
buses, student activity buses, or youth buses and are used by the district for the primary purpose of transporting
children), such as a van, to participate in the testing program to the same extent as required by law for school bus
drivers.  The Legislative Counsel has issued an opinion that Vehicle Code 34520.3 applies only to employees whose
primary job is transportation. The district should consult legal counsel as necessary to determine applicability of this
law to district employees.

The district's drug and alcohol testing program is subject to compliance inspections conducted by the CHP. It is
recommended that the district review the CHP's Controlled Substances and Alcohol Testing Compliance Checklist to
assess whether its program fulfills legal requirements.

The Governing Board desires to ensure that district-provided transportation is safe for students, staff,
and the public.  To that end, the Superintendent or designee shall establish a drug and alcohol testing
program designed to prevent the operation of buses or the performance of other safety-sensitive
functions by a driver who is under the influence of drugs or alcohol, including a driver of a school bus,
student activity bus, or other school transportation vehicle or any other employee who holds a
commercial driver's license which is necessary to perform duties related to district employment.

(cf. 3540 - Transportation)
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers)
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)
(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace)
(cf. 4112.41/4212.41/4312.41 - Employee Drug Testing)

A driver shall not report for duty or remain on duty when he/she has used any drug listed in 21 CFR
1308.11.  A driver is also prohibited from reporting for duty or remaining on duty when he/she has
used any drug listed in 21 CFR 1308.12-1308.15, unless he/she is using the drug under the direction of
a physician who has advised him/her that the substance will not adversely affect the driver's ability to
safely operate a bus. In addition, a driver shall not consume alcohol while on duty or for four hours
prior to on-duty time. (49 CFR 382.201-382.209, 382.213)

Note: 49 USC 31306 and 49 CFR 382.301-382.311 require that certain types of tests be part of the district's drug and
alcohol testing program. See the accompanying administrative regulation for requirements applicable to each test.

Pursuant to 49 CFR 382.301, the district may, but is not required to, conduct pre-employment alcohol testing. The
following paragraph should be revised by districts that choose to conduct such testing.

The district's testing program for drivers shall include pre-employment drug testing and reasonable
suspicion, random, post-accident, return-to-duty, and follow-up drug and alcohol testing of drivers.
(49 USC 31306; 49 CFR 382.301-382.311)



2

Note: Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.11, districts are responsible for implementing the drug and alcohol testing program. They
may do this using their own employees, contracting for services, or joining together in a consortium with other
employers. The following optional paragraph provides that the district will contract for such services and may be
revised by districts that use alternative methods.

The Board shall contract for testing services upon verifying that the personnel are appropriately
qualified and/or certified and that testing procedures conform to federal regulations.

Except as otherwise provided by law, the Superintendent or designee shall not release individual test
results or medical information about a driver to a third party without the driver's specific written
consent.  (49 CFR 40.321)

Consequences Based on Test Results

Any driver who refuses to take a required drug or alcohol test, tests positive for drugs, or is found to
have a blood alcohol concentration level that exceeds the levels specified in law shall be removed from
performing safety-sensitive functions in accordance with 49 CFR 40.23 and 382.211.

Note: Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.21 and 382.119, before temporarily removing a driver from safety-sensitive functions,
the district must receive verification of the test results from a licensed physician certified as a medical review officer,
unless a waiver of this requirement has been obtained from the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration.

No driver shall be temporarily removed from the performance of safety-sensitive functions based only
on a laboratory report of a confirmed positive test before the certified medical review officer has
completed verification of the test results, unless the district has obtained a waiver.  (49 CFR 40.21,
382.107, 382.119)

Not later than five days after receiving notification of the test result or refusal to comply, the
Superintendent or designee shall report any refusal, failure to comply, or positive test result to the
California Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) using a form approved by the DMV.  (Vehicle Code
13376)

Note: Pursuant to Vehicle Code 13376, upon receiving a report of a driver's refusal, failure to comply, or positive test
result, the California Department of Motor Vehicles will revoke the driver certificate or refuse to approve an initial
application for a certificate. An exception exists for a driver who complies with a rehabilitation or return-to-duty
program that meets the requirements of federal regulations. For purposes of retaining his/her certificate, the driver may
participate in such a program only once within a three-year period.

The following paragraph is optional. Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.289, the district is not required to provide education and
treatment services to any driver. However, if the district offers the driver an opportunity to return to work following a
violation, then it must ensure that the driver receives an evaluation by a qualified substance abuse professional and
successfully complies with the evaluation recommendations. Responsibility for payment for evaluation and services is
to be determined by the district and driver and may be governed by a collective bargaining agreement and health care
benefits.

Any driver who refuses, fails to comply, or has a positive test result may be referred to an education
and treatment program that meets the requirements of 49 CFR 40.281-40.313.  If the substance abuse
professional recommends that ongoing services are needed to assist the driver to maintain sobriety or
abstinence from drug use, the Superintendent or designee shall require the driver to participate in the
recommended services as part of a return-to-duty agreement and shall monitor his/her compliance.

New

New

New



3

Any drop from a rehabilitation or return-to-duty program or a subsequent positive test result shall be
reported to the DMV. The driver will have full responsibility for payment for evaluation and resulting
recommended services. (Vehicle Code 13376; 49 CFR 40.285, 40.287, 40.303, 382.605)

(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs)
(cf. 4161/4261 - Leaves)
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave)
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program)
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave)

A driver who has violated federal drug and alcohol regulations may be subject to disciplinary action up
to and including dismissal in accordance with law, administrative regulations, and the district's
collective bargaining agreement.

(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal)
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Voluntary Self-Identification

Note: The following section is for use by districts that choose to establish a voluntary self-identification policy or
program, pursuant to 49 CFR 382.121, which relieves drivers who admit alcohol or drug misuse from the federal
requirements for referral, evaluation, and treatment contained in 49 CFR 40.281-40.313.  If the district chooses to
establish such a program, it is mandated to adopt a written policy containing the provisions specified in items #1-3
below.  Pursuant to 49 CFR 382.121, the district's program may also include employee monitoring and non-DOT
follow-up testing.  If the district chooses to incorporate these elements, it should add them to this list.

Whenever a driver admits to alcohol or drug misuse under the district's voluntary self-identification
program, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure all of the following:  (49 CFR 382.121)

1. No adverse action shall be taken against the driver by the district.

2. The driver shall be allowed sufficient opportunity to seek evaluation, education, or treatment to
establish control over his/her drug or alcohol problem.

3. The driver shall be permitted to participate in safety-sensitive functions only after:

a. Successfully completing an education or treatment program, as determined by a drug
and alcohol abuse evaluation expert, such as an employee assistance professional,
substance abuse professional, or qualified drug and alcohol counselor

b. Undergoing a return-to-duty test with a result indicating an alcohol concentration of less
than 0.02 and/or a verified negative result for drug use

A driver who admits to alcohol or drug misuse shall not be subject to federal requirements related to
referral, evaluation, and treatment, provided that he/she does not self-identify in order to avoid drug or
alcohol testing, makes the admission prior to performing a safety-sensitive function, and does not
perform a safety-sensitive function until he/she has been evaluated and has successfully completed
education or treatment requirements in accordance with program guidelines.  (49 CFR 382.121)

New



4

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35160  Authority of governing boards
GOVERNMENT CODE
8355  Drug-free workplace; employee notification
VEHICLE CODE
13376  Driver certificates; revocation or suspension
34500-34520.5  Safety regulations
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 13
1200-1293 Motor carrier safety, especially:
1213.1  Placing drivers out-of-service
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 41
8101-8106 Drug-Free Workplace Act
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 49
31306   Alcohol and drug testing
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21
1308.11-1308.15 Controlled substances
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 49
40.1-40.413  Procedures for transportation workplace drug and alcohol testing programs
382.101-382.605  Drug and alcohol use and testing; especially:
382.205  On-duty use
382.207  Pre-duty use
382.209  Use following an accident

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL PUBLICATIONS
Controlled Substances and Alcohol Testing Compliance Checklist, 2007
What is CSAT? Controlled Substances and Alcohol Testing, 2005
WEB SITES
California Highway Patrol: http://www.chp.ca.gov
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration: http://www.fmcsa.dot.gov
U.S. Department of Transportation, Office of Drug and Alcohol Policy and Compliance:
http://www.dot.gov/ost/dapc

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Regulation approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD NEW REG

All Personnel AR 4112.42(a)
4212.42

DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING FOR SCHOOL BUS DRIVERS

Note: The following administrative regulation reflects state and federal requirements (Vehicle Code 34520; 49 CFR
40.1-40.413, 382.101-382.605) for drug and alcohol testing of school bus drivers, including pre-employment, post-
accident, random, reasonable suspicion, return-to-duty, and follow-up testing. Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.27, the district
must not require a driver to sign a consent, release, waiver of liability, or indemnification agreement with respect to any
part of the drug or alcohol testing process.

Definitions

For purposes of drug testing required by the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), drugs included
in the tests are marijuana, cocaine, amphetamines, phencyclidine (PCP), and opiates.  (49 CFR 40.3,
40.85, 382.107)

Alcohol concentration or level means the alcohol in a volume of breath expressed in terms of grams of
alcohol per 210 liters of breath. For purposes of the DOT alcohol testing program, an alcohol level
between 0.02 and 0.04 requires removal of the bus driver for a 24-hour period following the test.  An
alcohol level of 0.04 or higher requires immediate removal of the driver from performing safety-
sensitive functions until the driver has successfully completed the return-to-duty process.  (49 CFR
382.107, 382.201, 382.505)

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in
readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing
work. Safety-sensitive functions include, but are not limited to, all time driving or otherwise in the bus;
waiting at a district facility to be dispatched; inspecting, servicing, or conditioning the bus or bus
equipment; loading or unloading the bus; supervising or assisting in the loading or unloading of the
bus; and repairing, obtaining assistance, or remaining in attendance upon a disabled bus.  (49 CFR
382.107)

(cf. 3540 - Transportation)
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers)
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies)
(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace)

Designated Employer Representative

Note: 49 CFR 40.35 and 40.215 require the district to identify a "designated employer representative" to perform the
duties specified in 49 CFR 40.3. The following paragraph may be revised to reflect the title of the employee so
designated.



2

The Superintendent or designee shall identify a designated employer representative and shall provide
his/her name and telephone number to the testing contractor to contact about any problems or issues
that may arise during the testing process.  (49 CFR 40.35, 40.215)
The designated employer representative shall be responsible for receiving test results and other
communications, taking immediate action(s) to remove drivers from safety-sensitive functions, and
making other required decisions in the testing and evaluation processes.  (49 CFR 40.3)

Pre-employment Testing

When hiring a new driver, the Superintendent or designee shall, with the driver's written consent,
request the driver's past drug and alcohol testing record, as specified in 49 CFR 40.25, from any
employer who has employed the driver at any time during the previous two years. In addition, the
Superintendent or designee shall ask the driver if he/she tested positive, or refused to test, on any pre-
employment drug or alcohol test that was administered during the past two years in the course of
applying for another safety-sensitive transportation position that he/she did not obtain. The driver shall
not be permitted to perform safety-sensitive functions if he/she refuses to provide consent to obtain the
information from previous employers, the information from previous employers is not received within
30 days of the date on which the driver first performed safety-sensitive functions for the district, or the
driver or a previous employer reports a violation of a drug or alcohol regulation without subsequent
completion of the return-to-duty process. (49 CFR 40.25, 382.413)

Upon making a contingent offer of employment to a driver and prior to the first time the driver
performs safety-sensitive functions for the district, the Superintendent or designee shall require the
driver to undergo testing for drugs and to receive a verified negative test result. This testing
requirement may be waived if all of the following conditions exist: (49 CFR 382.301)

1. The driver has participated in a qualified drug testing program within the previous 30 days.

2. While participating in the program, the driver either was tested within the past six months or
participated in a random drug testing program for the previous 12 months.

3. The Superintendent or designee has contacted the testing program(s) in which the driver has
participated and has obtained information about the program and the driver's participation as
specified in 49 CFR 382.301.

4. No prior employer of the driver of whom the district has knowledge has records of the driver's
violation of federal drug testing regulations within the previous six months.

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that choose to conduct pre-employment alcohol testing;
see the accompanying Board policy. Pursuant to 49 CFR 382.301, pre-employment alcohol testing is not required but,
if the district chooses to conduct such testing, it must comply with the following requirements.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require the driver to undergo pre-employment alcohol
testing in accordance with the procedures in 49 CFR 40.1-40.605 and to receive a test result indicating
an alcohol concentration level of less than 0.04. (49 CFR 382.301)



3

Post-Accident Testing

As soon as practicable following an accident involving a school bus or student activity bus, the
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the driver involved is tested for alcohol and/or drugs
under either of the following conditions:  (49 CFR 382.303)

1. The accident involved loss of human life.

2. The driver receives a citation for alcohol use within eight hours of the accident, or for drug use
within 32 hours of the accident, and the accident involved bodily injury to a person who
required immediate medical treatment away from the scene of the accident and/or disabling
damage to one or more vehicles requiring towing.

The Superintendent or designee shall attempt to administer a required alcohol test up to eight hours
following the accident and/or a drug test up to 32 hours following the accident. The results of an
alcohol or drug test conducted by federal, state, or local officials having independent authority for the
test shall be considered to meet this requirement.  If the alcohol test is not administered within two
hours following the accident, or the test for drugs is not administered within 32 hours following the
accident, the Superintendent or designee shall make a record stating the reasons the test was not
promptly administered.  (49 CFR 382.303)

Random Testing

Note: The district may revise the following paragraph to specify the method by which it will select drivers
for random drug and alcohol testing. Pursuant to 49 CFR 382.305, the district must randomly select drivers
for testing using a scientifically valid method such as a random number table or a computer-based random number
generator that is matched with drivers' Social Security numbers, payroll identification numbers, or other comparable
identifying numbers. Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.347, the district may contract with a third-party administrator or join a
consortium of employers to operate the random selection process.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that random, unannounced drug and alcohol tests of bus
drivers are conducted on testing dates reasonably spread throughout the year. Such tests shall be
conducted during, immediately before, or immediately after the performance of safety-sensitive
functions.  (49 CFR 382.305)

Note: The district must annually test at least 10 percent of district drivers for alcohol and at least 50 percent for drugs,
in accordance with the calculations and procedures described in 49 CFR 382.305. The minimum required percentage is
subject to change as determined necessary by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA). Any such
change will be published in the Federal Register and on the FMCSA's web site and will be effective starting January 1
following such publication.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the percentage of district drivers randomly tested for
drugs and alcohol meets or exceeds the minimum annual percentage rates specified in 49 CFR 382.305
or subsequently published in the Federal Register.

Each driver selected for random testing shall have an equal chance of being tested each time selections
are made.  (49 CFR 382.305)



4

Each driver who is selected for testing shall proceed to the test site immediately or, if performing a
safety-sensitive function other than driving a bus, then as soon as possible after ceasing that function.
(49 CFR 382.305)

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

Note: The following section may be revised to reflect the position (e.g., driver's supervisor or other district employee)
authorized and trained to make observations for reasonable suspicion drug or alcohol testing.

A driver shall be required to submit to a drug or alcohol test whenever the Superintendent or designee
has reasonable suspicion that the driver has violated the prohibitions against the use of drugs or
alcohol.  Such reasonable suspicion shall be based on specific, contemporaneous, articulable
observations, conducted during, immediately before, or immediately after the performance of safety-
sensitive functions, concerning the driver's appearance, behavior, speech, and/or body odors.
Reasonable suspicion of drug use may also include indications of the chronic and withdrawal effects of
drugs.  (49 CFR 382.307)

The person who makes the required observations for reasonable suspicion testing for drugs or alcohol
shall be trained in accordance with 49 CFR 382.603. The person who makes the determination that
reasonable suspicion exists to conduct an alcohol test shall not be the same person who conducts the
alcohol test.  (49 CFR 382.307)

Within 24 hours of the observed behavior or before the results of the drug or alcohol test are released,
whichever is earlier, the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and sign a written record of the
observations leading to a reasonable suspicion test.  (49 CFR 382.307)

An alcohol test required as a result of reasonable suspicion shall be administered within eight hours
following the determination of reasonable suspicion.  If the test is not administered within two hours,
the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and maintain on file a record stating the reasons the test
was not promptly administered.  (49 CFR 382.307)

In the absence of a reasonable suspicion alcohol test, the district shall take no action against a driver
based solely on the driver's behavior and appearance, except that the driver shall not be allowed to
report for or remain on safety-sensitive functions until an alcohol test is administered and the results
show a concentration less than 0.02 or 24 hours have elapsed following the determination of
reasonable suspicion.  (49 CFR 382.307)

Return-to-Duty Testing

Note: Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.305, the district may return a driver to safety-sensitive functions after he/she completes
required education and treatment services as described in the accompanying Board policy and a return-to-duty drug or
alcohol test. Such personnel decisions may be subject to collective bargaining or other legal requirements.

The Superintendent or designee may permit a driver who has violated federal drug or alcohol
regulations to return to safety-sensitive functions after the driver has successfully complied with the
education and treatment services prescribed by a substance abuse professional and has a taken a return-
to-duty drug or alcohol test. The driver shall not resume performance of safety-sensitive functions
unless the drug test shows a negative result and/or the alcohol test shows a concentration of less than
0.02.  (49 CFR 40.305, 382.309)



5

Follow-Up Testing

Note: Pursuant to 49 CFR 40.307, after a driver successfully complies with education and treatment services, the
substance abuse professional will prescribe a follow-up testing  plan and will present that plan to the designated
employer representative. The plan must direct that the driver be subject to at least six unannounced follow-up tests in
the first 12 months following the driver's return to safety-sensitive functions.

Upon receiving a written follow-up testing plan from a substance abuse professional, the
Superintendent or designee shall determine the actual dates for follow-up testing consistent with those
recommendations and shall ensure that such tests are unannounced and follow no discernible pattern as
to their timing. No additional tests beyond those included in the plan shall be imposed by the district.
(49 CFR 40.307-40.309, 382.111)

Notifications

Note: Pursuant to 49 CFR 382.601, the district is mandated to adopt policy and procedures pertaining to
misuse of drugs and alcohol and to provide these materials to each driver. When conducting compliance inspections, the
CHP reviews whether district policy or regulations contain all of items #1-11 below.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide each driver with materials explaining the federal
regulations and the district's policy and procedure related to drug and alcohol testing and shall notify
representatives of employee organizations of the availability of this information.  This information
shall include a detailed discussion of at least the following:  (49 CFR 382.303, 382.113, 382.601)

1. The identity of the person designated by the district to answer driver questions about the
materials

2. The categories of drivers who are subject to drug and alcohol testing

3. Sufficient information about the safety-sensitive functions performed by those drivers to make
clear what period of the workday the driver is required to be in compliance

4. Specific information concerning prohibited driver conduct

5. The circumstances under which a driver will be tested for drugs and/or alcohol, including post-
accident testing

6. The procedures that will be used to test for the presence of drugs and alcohol, protect the driver
and the integrity of the testing processes, safeguard the validity of the test results, and ensure
that those results are attributed to the correct driver

7. The requirement that a driver submit to drug and alcohol tests

8. An explanation of what constitutes a refusal to submit to a drug or alcohol test and the
attendant consequences

9. The consequences for drivers found to have violated the prohibitions against drug or alcohol
use, including the circumstances under which drivers will be removed immediately from



6

safety-sensitive functions and the requirements for education, treatment, and return-to-duty
testing

10. The consequences for drivers found to have a blood alcohol concentration between 0.02 and
0.04

11. Information concerning the effects of drug and alcohol use on an individual's health, work, and
personal life; signs and symptoms of a drug or alcohol problem (the driver's or a co-worker's);
and available methods of intervening when a drug or alcohol problem is suspected, including
confrontation, referral to any employee assistance program, and/or referral to management

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Each driver shall sign a statement certifying that he/she has received a copy of the above materials.
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the original of the signed certificate and may provide a
copy of the certificate to the driver.  (49 CFR 382.601)

In addition, prior to administering each alcohol or drug test, the driver shall be notified that the test is
required pursuant to Title 49, Part 382, of the Code of Federal Regulations. (49 CFR 382.113)

The driver shall be notified of the results of drug and alcohol tests in accordance with 49 CFR 382.411.

Records

Note: 49 CFR 40. 333 and 382.401 specify the records that must be retained by the district and how long each record
must be retained (i.e., one year, two years, three years, five years, or indefinitely). Upon receiving a request from the
FMCSA to inspect any such record, the district must make the record(s) available for inspection at the district office
within two business days.

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the district's drug and alcohol testing
program in accordance with 49 CFR 40.333 and 382.401. Such records shall be maintained in a secure
location with controlled access and shall be disclosed only in accordance with 49 CFR 382.405.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



All Personnel E 4112.9
4212.9

EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATIONS 4312.9

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees

At the beginning of school year 231.5, Government AR 4119.11 The district's policy on
or upon employment Code 12950, 4219.11 sexual harassment, legal

2 CCR 11023 4319.11 remedies, complaints

Annually to all employees 17612 AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product,
active ingredients, Internet
address to access information

To all employees, prior to 37616 AR 6112 Public hearing on year-round
implementing year-round program
schedule

To all employees, prior to 46162 AR 6112 Public hearing on block
implementing block schedule schedule

Annually to all employees 49013; AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures,
5 CCR 4622 BP 3260 appeals, civil law remedies,

coordinator, complaints about
student fees and local control
and accountability plan

To all employees Government Code BP 4136 Prohibition of activities that
1126 4236 are inconsistent, incompatible,

4336 in conflict with, or inimical to
duties; discipline; appeal

Prior to beginning employment Government Code AR 4112.3 Oath or affirmation of
3102 4212.3 allegiance required of public

4312.3 employees

To all employees Government Code BP 4020 District's drug- and alcohol-
8355; 41 USC 8102 BP 4159 free workplace; actions to be

4259 taken if violated; available
4359 employee assistance programs

Upon placement of automated Health and Safety AR 5141 Proper use of AED; location
external defibrillator (AED) in Code 1797.196 of all AEDs on campus
school, and annually thereafter



2

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees (continued)

To all employees, if the Health and Safety AR 3513.3 District's tobacco-free schools
district receives Tobacco-Use Code 104420 policy and enforcement
Prevention Education funds procedures

Annually to all employees Health and Safety AR 4119.43 AIDS and hepatitis B,
120875, 120880 4219.43 including methods to prevent

4319.43 exposure

To covered employees and Labor Code AR 4154 Availability of COBRA/
former employees 2800.2 4254 Cal-COBRA continuation

4354 and conversion coverage;
statement encouraging careful
examination of options before
declining coverage

Upon employment or by end Labor Code BP 4157.1 Workers' compensation
of first pay period 3551 4257.1 benefits, how to obtain medical

4357.1 care, role of primary physician,
form for reporting personal
physician/chiropractor

Prior to beginning employment Penal Code AR 5141.4 Status as a mandated reporter
11165.7, 11166.5 of child abuse, reporting

obligations, confidentiality
rights, copy of law

Upon employment, and when Unemployment AR 4154 Disability insurance rights and
employee goes on leave Insurance Code 4254 benefits
for specified reasons 2613 4354

To all employees via employee 2 CCR 11096; AR 4161.8 Benefits through Family and
handbook, or to each new 29 CFR 825.300 4261.8 Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
employee 4361.8 and California Family Rights

Act (CFRA); obligation to
provide 30 days' notice of
need for leave when possible

To all employees and job 34 CFR 104.8, BP 0410 District's policy on
applicants 106.9 BP 4030 nondiscrimination and related

complaint procedures



3

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  To All Employees (continued)

Annually to all employees 40 CFR 763.84, AR 3514 Availability of asbestos
763.93 management plan; inspections,

response actions, post-response
actions planned or in progress

II.  To Certificated Employees

To eligible certificated 22455.5 AR 4121 Criteria for membership in
employees in a timely manner, retirement system; right to
and to part-time and substitute elect membership at any time
certificated employees
within 30 days of hire

Upon employment of a 22461 AR 4117.14 Postretirement earnings
retired certificated individual 4317.14 limitation or employment

restriction; monthly report of
compensation

To certificated employees 35171 AR 4115 District regulations related to
BP 4315 performance evaluations

30 days before last day of 44663 AR 4115 Copy of employee's evaluation
school year for instructional
staff, or by June 30 for
noninstructional certificated
staff, in any year in which
employee is evaluated

To a certificated employee 44664 AR 4115 Notice and description of the
with unsatisfactory evaluation unsatisfactory performance

By May 30, if district issues 44842 AR 4112.1 Request that the employee
reemployment notices to notify district of intent to
certificated employees remain in service next year

To certificated employees 44916 AR 4112.1 Employment status and salary
upon employment AR 4121

To probationary employees in 44929.21 AR 4117.6 Whether or not employee is
district with ADA of 250 or reelected for next school year
more, by March 15 of
employee's second consecutive
year of employment



4

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  To Certificated Employees (continued)

When certificated employee is 44934 AR 4117.4 Notice of charges, procedures,
subject to disciplinary action AR 4118 and employee rights; intent to
for cause dismiss or suspend 30 days

after notice

To certificated employee charged 44938 AR 4118 Notice of deficiency and
with unprofessional conduct opportunity to correct

To certificated employee charged 44940.5 AR 4118 Notice of intent to dismiss
with mandatory leave of absence 30 days from notice
offense, within 10 days of entry
of judgment in proceedings

To probationary employees 44948.3 AR 4117.4 Reasons for dismissal and
30 days prior to dismissal, or not opportunity to appeal
later than March 15 for second-
year probationary employees

To probationary employees in 44948.5 AR 4117.4 Recommendation of
districts with less than 250 ADA, nonreelection notice for reason
before notice of nonreelection other than personnel reduction;
but no later than March 15, statement of reasons upon
with final notice by May 15 request

By March 15 when necessary 44949, 44955 BP 4117.3 Reasons for personnel
to reduce certificated personnel, reduction and employees' right
with final notice by May 15 to hearing; final notice of

Board decision re: termination

On or before June 30, to 44954 BP 4121 District's decision not to
temporary employee who reelect employee for
served 75 percent of school year following school year
but will be released

To teacher, when student 49079 AR 4158 Student has committed
engages in or is reasonably 4258 specified act that constitutes suspected of
specified acts 4358 ground for suspension or

expulsion

To certificated employee upon 5 CCR 80303 AR 4117.7 Contents of state regulation
change in employment status re: report to Commission on
due to alleged misconduct or Teacher Credentialing
while allegation is pending



5

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  To Certificated Employees (continued)

To teachers when school is 20 USC 6316 AR 0520.2 School identified for
identified for Title I program restructuring; opportunity to
improvement restructuring comment and participate

III.  To Classified Employees

To classified employee charged 44940.5 AR 4218 Notice of intent to dismiss in
with mandatory leave of 30 days
absence offense, in merit system
district

When classified employee is 45113 AR 4218 Notice of charges, procedures,
subject to disciplinary action and employee rights
for cause, in nonmerit district

To classified employees, at 45117 AR 4217.3 Notice of layoff and
least 60 days prior to layoff, reemployment rights
or by April 29 if specially
funded program is expiring at
end of school year

To classified employees upon 45169 AR 4212 Employee's class specification,
employment and upon each salary data, assignment or
change in classification work location, duty hours,

prescribed workweek

To classified permanent 45192, AR 4261.1 Exhaustion of leave,
employee whose leave 45195 AR 4261.11 opportunity to request
is exhausted additional leave

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 1234 AR 3542 Expiration date of driver's
school activity bus drivers license, driver's certificate and
prior to expiration of medical certificate; need to
specified documents renew

To school bus drivers and 13 CCR 2480 AR 3542 Limitations on vehicle
school activity bus drivers idling; consequences of not
upon employment and at complying
least once per year thereafter

To school bus drivers, prior to 49 CFR 382.601 BP 4112.42 Explanation of federal
district drug testing program 4212.42 requirements for drug testing
and thereafter upon employment 4312.42 program and district's policy



6

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

IV.  To Administrative/Supervisory Personnel

To deputy, associate, or 35031 BP 4312.1 Decision not to reelect or
assistant superintendent or reemploy upon expiration of
senior manager of classified contract or term
service, at least 45 days before
expiration of contract

Upon request by administrative 44896 AR 4313.2 Statement of the reasons for
or supervisory employee the release or reassignment
transferred to teaching position

By March 15 to employee 44951 AR 4313.2 Notice that employee may be
who may be released/reassigned released or reassigned the
the following school year following school year

V.  To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances

Prior to placing derogatory 44031 AR 4112.6 Notice of derogatory
information in personnel file 4212.6 information, opportunity to

4312.6 review and comment

24 hours before Board meets Government Code BB 9321 Employee's right to have
in closed session to hear 54957 complaints/charges heard in
complaints or charges against open session
employee

Notice or training to employee Government Code BP 4119.23 Law prohibiting disclosure of
with access to confidential 54963 4219.23 confidential information
information 4319.23 obtained in closed session

Within one day of work-related Labor Code 3553, BP 4157.1 Potential eligibility for
injury or victimization of 5401 4257.1 workers' compensation
crime at workplace ` 4357.1 benefits, claim form

Within five days of employee's 2 CCR 11049; AR 4161.8 Whether or not employee is
request for family care and 29 CFR 825.300 4261.8 eligible for FMLA leave (consequences of
medical leave 4361.8 failure to meet obligation)

To any employee with 8 CCR 3204, AR 4119.42 The existence, location, and
exposure to bloodborne 5193 4219.42 availability of exposure and
pathogens, upon initial 4319.42 medical records; person
employment and at least responsible for maintaining
annually thereafter and providing access to

records; right to access records



7

Education or Board Policy/
When/Whom Other Legal Administrative
to Notify Code Regulation # Subject

V.  To Individual Employees Under Special Circumstances (continued)

To any employee assigned 8 CCR 5191 AR 3514.1 Location and availability of
to a work area where chemical hygiene plan,
hazardous chemicals are exposure limits, signs and
present, upon initial symptoms of exposure,
assignment and upon new location of reference material
exposure situation

To any employee who may 8 CCR 5194 AR 3514.1 Any presence of hazardous
be exposed to hazardous substances in the work area,
substances in the work area, location and availability of
upon initial assignment and hazard communication program,
when new hazard is new material safety data sheet,
introduced into work area employee rights

To employee eligible for 38 USC 4334 AR 4161.5 Notice of rights, benefits, and
military leave 4261.5 obligations under military

4361.5 leave

Whenever notice of eligibility 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8 Rights and responsibilities re:
for FMLA is provided to 4261.8 use of FMLA; consequences of
employee 4361.8 failure to meet obligations

Within five days of receiving 29 CFR 825.300 AR 4161.8 Designation of leave as
information to determine if 4261.8 FMLA or non-FMLA; any
leave qualifies for FMLA 4361.8 requirement to use paid leave;

any requirement for fitness-
for-duty certification; any
subsequent changes in
designation notice

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Exhibit SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
version:   September 11, 2012 Sierraville, California
Revised:  June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD

Certificated Personnel AR 4117.14
4317.14

POSTRETIREMENT EMPLOYMENT

Note:  The following optional administrative regulation addresses postretirement employment restrictions and benefits
which are applicable by law when retired members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) are
hired by the district after their retirement.

When necessary, the Governing Board may hire a qualified retired certificated individual who
possesses the knowledge and experience needed to perform creditable service for the district as an
employee, the employee of a third party, or an independent contractor/consultant, provided that all
applicable restrictions specified by the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) are
met.  Applicable CalSTRS restrictions include, but are not limited to, a requirement that a retired
member be paid compensation comparable to that for active employees for comparable duties and
prohibitions against the hiring of a retired member within 180 days of his/her retirement and for the
classified service, except as an aide pursuant to Education Code 45134.  Additional restrictions and
rules may apply to other employment situations, such as when CalSTRS retired members are employed
as employees of third parties, independent contractors, or consultants.  The Superintendent or designee
should consult legal counsel when dealing with such employment situations.  (Education Code
22119.5, 22164.5, 24214, 24214.5)

(cf. 3600 - Consultants)
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection)
(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

Any retired member of the defined benefit program of CalSTRS who is hired by the district to perform
retired member activities as defined pursuant to Education Code 22164.5 shall be paid at an annualized
rate of pay that shall not be below the minimum or exceed the maximum paid to other district
employees performing comparable duties.  However, such a retired individual shall not make
contributions to the CalSTRS retirement fund or accrue service credit based on compensation earned
from the retired member activity.  (Education Code 24214)

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 24214.5, retired CalSTRS members may be hired to perform work that would
normally accrue service credit in CalSTRS (creditable service) as long as the work commences more than 180 days after
the member's retirement.  Such retired individuals are allowed to receive compensation for services rendered without
reduction in their retirement allowance if the compensation does not exceed the CalSTRS earnings limit. However, a
retired CalSTRS member may be exempted from the 180-day waiting period if he/she has attained the normal
retirement age and certain other conditions are met, as listed in items #1-6 below.  Even if a retired individual is
exempted from the 180-day waiting period, he/she shall still be subject to the postretirement compensation limitation
specified in Education Code 24214.

No retired member of the CalSTRS defined benefit program shall be hired by the district for at least
180 calendar days after his/her retirement from service, unless he/she has attained the normal
retirement age and qualifies for an exemption to the 180-day waiting period.  To seek this exemption,
the Board shall, during the open session of a Board meeting, adopt a resolution which shall include the
following information and findings:  (Education Code 24214.5)



2

1. A statement expressing the Board's intent to seek an exemption to the 180-day waiting period

2. A description of the nature of the employment of the retiree

3. A finding that the retiree has reached the normal retirement age

4. A finding that the appointment of the retiree is necessary to fill a critically needed position
before the 180-day waiting period has passed

Note:  Education Code 24214.5 requires a finding that the retired individual did not receive additional service credit or a
financial inducement to retire, as provided in item #5 below.  Pursuant to Education Code 24214.5, as amended by AB
1381 (Ch. 559, Statutes of 2013), "financial inducement to retire" is defined broadly and includes any form of
compensation or other payment paid to a retired member directly or indirectly by "any public employer," not just the
district needing to employ the retired member.

5. A finding that the retired individual did not receive additional service credit pursuant to
Education Code 22714 or 22715 or any financial inducement to retire.  Financial inducement to
retire shall include, but is not limited to, cash or any form of compensation or other payment
directly or indirectly paid by any public employer to the retired individual before or after
his/her retirement, if the individual retires for service on or before a specific date or range of
dates established by the public employer on or before the date the inducement is offered

6. A finding that the retired individual's termination of employment with the district is not the
basis for the need to acquire the services of the retired individual

The resolution shall not be adopted through the Board's consent agenda.  (Education Code 24214.5)

(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

When employing a retired individual who is eligible for exemption from the 180-day waiting period,
the Superintendent or designee shall submit all required documentation to substantiate eligibility for
the exemption to CalSTRS before the retired member begins performing any retired member activities.
The Superintendent or designee may contact CalSTRS to request information as to whether the retired
member qualifies for the exemption after 30 days of submitting the required documentation to
CalSTRS.  (Education Code 24214.5)

Note:  Special rules apply to the hiring of an individual receiving a CalSTRS disability allowance and the district should
consult CalSTRS and legal counsel prior to employing any such disability allowance recipient.

Postretirement Compensation Limitation, Notice, and Report

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 22461, as amended by AB 1379 (Ch. 558, Statutes of 2013), a district is required to
notify retired individuals of the employment restrictions and the CalSTRS postretirement compensation limitation as
specified in the following section.  However, the statute expressly states that it does not impose liability upon the
district for any amount paid in excess of the limitation or for failing to inform the retired individual that continuation of
service would exceed the limitation.

All CalSTRS retirees performing creditable service for the district shall be subject to the applicable
CalSTRS earnings limit.  Monies earned in excess of the limit may subject the CalSTRS retiree to a
reduction in his/her retirement allowance. Compensation subject to the earnings limitation includes,



3

but is not limited to, salary or wages, deferred compensation plans, purchase of an annuity contract,
tax-deferred retirement plan or insurance program, and other plans or contributions when the cost is
covered by a district. (Education Code 22119.5, 22164.5, 24214)

Whenever the district retains the services of a CalSTRS retiree as a district employee, employee of a
third party, or an independent contractor, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (Education Code
22461, 24214)

1. Advise the retired individual of the postretirement earnings limitation or employment
restriction set forth in Education Code 22714, 24214, or 24214.5 or any other applicable law

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

2. Maintain accurate records of the retired individual's compensation and report it monthly to
CalSTRS and the individual, regardless of the method of payment or the fund from which the
payments are made

Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 27000-27009, CalSTRS has the authority to impose penalties on employers for late reporting
of retired members' contributions. However, since retirees no longer contribute to CalSTRS, the penalties may be
inapplicable.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
22119.5  Creditable service, definition
22131  Employer; employing agency, definition
22164.5  Retired member activities, definition
22461  Notice of earnings limitation
22714  Encouragement of retirement
22715 Additional service credit
22716  Unpaid services
24214  Creditable service by retiree
24214.5  Postretirement compensation limit; members below normal retirement age
26113  Creditable service, definition
35046  Consultancy contracts
44830  Employment of certificated employees
44830.3  Employment of district interns
44929  Service credit under STRS; additional two years
44929.1  2+2 service and year credit option under STRS
45134  Age limits
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
27000-27009  Penalties and interests for late remittances and late and unacceptable reporting by employers

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California State Teachers' Retirement System:  http://www.calstrs.com

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Regulation approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 14, 2011
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



1

Personnel AR 4117.7
4317.7

EMPLOYMENT STATUS REPORTS

Note:  Education Code 44030.5 and 44242.5, as added and amended by AB 449 (Ch. 232, Statutes of 2013), and 5 CCR
80303, as amended by Register 2014, No. 14, require the Superintendent to make a report to the Commission on
Teacher Credentialing (CTC) when the employment status of a certificated employee has been changed as a result of
alleged misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending.  Upon notification by the district or other specified
agencies, the CTC may conduct a review and take an adverse action against the certificated employee, including, but not
limited to, suspension or revocation of the credential.

Pursuant to 5 CCR 80303, the report must be made regardless of any proposed or actual agreement, settlement, or
stipulation between the district and the employee not to make such a report. The report must also be made if the
allegations are withdrawn in consideration of the employee's resignation, retirement, or other failure to contest the truth
of the allegations.

Pursuant to Education Code 44030.5 and 5 CCR 80303, as amended, the Superintendent's failure to make the report of
the change in employment status or to notify the affected employee of the contents of 5 CCR 80303 would be
considered unprofessional conduct and, if it is determined that the Superintendent refused or willfully neglected to make
the report, he/she may be found guilty of a misdemeanor and fined.

The Superintendent shall report to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) any change in the
employment status of a certificated employee who, while working in a position requiring a credential
and as a result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending:
(Education Code 44030.5, 44242.5; 5 CCR 80303)

1. Is dismissed or nonreelected

(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status)
(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal)
(cf. 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire)

2. Resigns

(cf. 4117.2 - Resignation)

3. Is suspended or placed on unpaid administrative leave for more than 10 days as a final adverse
employment action

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

4. Retires

5. Is otherwise terminated by a decision not to employ or reemploy

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)



2

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 44030.5 and 44242.5, as added and amended by AB 449 (Ch. 232, Statutes of 2013),
a change in employment status due solely to unsatisfactory performance or a reduction in force does not require a report
to the CTC.

This report is not required when the change in employment status is due solely to unsatisfactory
performance pursuant to Education Code 44932 or a reduction in force pursuant to Education Code
44955-44958. (Education Code 44030.5, 44242.5; 5 CCR 80303)

(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)
(cf. 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction)

Note: Education Code 44030.5 requires the Superintendent to submit the report to the CTC within 30 days of the
change in employment status.  5 CCR 80303, as amended by Register 2014, No. 14, requires the CTC to acknowledge
receipt of the report within 30 days of receipt.

5 CCR 80303, as amended, describes the contents that must be included in the report. The report should be made using
a notification form available on the CTC's web site and attaching relevant documents, evidence, and materials related to
the district's investigation of the misconduct.

When required, the report of a change in employment status shall be submitted not later than 30 days
after the employment action. The report shall be made using a form provided by the CTC and shall
include all known information about each alleged act of misconduct by the employee. The report shall
contain the name and current address of the certificated employee, name of the district, last school or
district assignment, an explanation of the allegation of misconduct or pending allegation of
misconduct, current contact information for all persons who may have information relating to the
alleged misconduct, and any and all documentation related to the case. (Education Code 44030.5; 5
CCR 80303)

Upon a change in employment status as a result of alleged misconduct or while an allegation of
misconduct is pending, the Superintendent shall, in writing, inform the employee of the contents of 5
CCR 80303.  (5 CCR 80303)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Additional Reports of Employee Misconduct

Note: Notification forms for the reports specified in items #1-2 below are available on the CTC's web site.

The Superintendent or designee shall submit a report to the CTC, using a form provided by the CTC
and attaching all relevant documents, whenever:

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 44940, the district must notify the CTC when an employee has been charged in court
with a "mandatory leave of absence offense," defined as a sex or drug offense specified in Education Code 44940. Also
see BP/AR 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action. Upon receiving notification from the district regarding any such
offense, the CTC will automatically suspend the employee's credential. Education Code 44423.5 also requires the CTC
to suspend an individual's credential upon receiving notice that another state has taken final action to revoke the
individual's credential.

1. An employee, by complaint, information, or indictment filed in court, is charged with a
"mandatory leave of absence offense," defined as a sex or drug offense specified in Education
Code 44940.  (Education Code 44242.5, 44940, 44940.5)



3

Not later than 10 days after receipt of such a complaint, information, or indictment regarding an
employee, the Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the received documents to
the CTC.  In addition, he/she shall report to the CTC any action taken in connection with
extending the employee's mandatory leave beyond the initial period.  (Education Code 44940,
44940.5)

Note:  According to the CTC's notification form, submission of this notification to the CTC does not relieve the district
of the obligation to also submit an employment status report of the same misconduct when the district takes disciplinary
action resulting in a change in employment status.

If the offense results in a change in employment status, the Superintendent shall submit an
employment status report in addition to the report of the mandatory leave of absence offense.

2. An employee refuses, without good cause, to fulfill a valid employment contract, or departs
from district service without the consent of the Superintendent or Governing Board.
(Education Code 44242.5, 44420)

Note:  Education Code 44242.5 gives the CTC authority to review any of the violations described in items #1-3 below
upon receiving notice from a district.  Since the law does not require districts to report these violations to the CTC, the
district should revise the following list to identify the types of violations that it will report and then ensure consistent
implementation.

As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee also shall notify the CTC of any of the following:

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 44242.5, the CTC will not consider action on the basis of alleged sexual misconduct
(item #1 below) unless there is evidence in the form of a written or oral declaration under penalty of perjury that
confirms the personal knowledge of the declarant regarding the acts alleged to constitute misconduct.

1. A complaint filed with the district regarding a certificated employee's alleged sexual
misconduct  (Education Code 44242.5)

The notice to the CTC shall contain all of the following information:  (5 CCR 80304)

a. Name of the employee alleged to have engaged in the sexual misconduct

b. Name, age, and address of each victim of the alleged sexual misconduct

c. A summary of all information known to the district regarding the alleged sexual
misconduct

d. A summary of the action, if any, taken at the district level in response to the complaint
of sexual misconduct

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

2. An employee's knowing and willful use of school records of student data in connection with, or
in implicit or explicit attempts to recruit a student to be a customer for, any business owned by
the certificated employee or in which the certificated employee is an employee  (Education
Code 44242.5, 44421.1)



4

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

3. An employee's knowing and willful reporting of false fiscal expenditure data relative to the
conduct of any educational program  (Education Code 44242.5, 44421.5)

4. An employee's subversion or attempt to subvert any licensing examination or the administration
of an examination  (Education Code 44242.5, 44439)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44009  Conviction of specified crimes
44010  Sex offense, definitions
44011  Controlled substance offense, definitions
44030.5  Employment status reports
44225  Powers and duties of the CTC
44242.5  Reports and review of alleged misconduct
44420-44440  Adverse actions by CTC against credential holder
44932  Causes for dismissal
44940  Sex offenses and narcotic offenses; compulsory leave of absence
44940.5  Compulsory leave of absence
44955-44958  Reduction in force
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
80303  Reports of change in employment status, alleged misconduct
80304  Notice of sexual misconduct

Management Resources:
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
California's Laws and Rules Pertaining to the Discipline of Professional Certificated Personnel, 2013
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Regulation approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:                        June 14, 2011
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



Students BP 5131.62

TOBACCO

The Governing Board recognizes the serious health risks presented by tobacco use and desires to
ensure that, through adoption of consistent policies, district students are made aware of those risks and,
to the extent possible, protected from them.  The Superintendent or designee shall establish a
coordinated school health system which includes a comprehensive behavioral health education
component that teaches students the knowledge, skills, and attitudes they need in order to lead healthy
lives and avoid high-risk behaviors, such as tobacco use.

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)

The Superintendent or designee shall may provide prevention, intervention, and cessation education,
information, activities, and/or referrals to district students and shall ensure consistent enforcement of
district policies prohibiting student possession and use of tobacco products.

Prohibition Against Tobacco Use

Note: Education Code 48900 and 48901 prohibit students from possessing, smoking, or using tobacco on school
grounds, as provided in the following paragraph. Pursuant to Education Code 48900, students who violate this
prohibition may be subject to discipline, including suspension or expulsion.  However, pursuant to Education Code
48900.5, it is recommended that other means of correction that address the student's conduct be implemented instead of
suspension or expulsion; see the section "Intervention/Cessation Services" below and AR 5144 - Discipline.  In
addition, Health and Safety Code 104420 mandates that any district receiving funding through the TUPE program adopt
and enforce a tobacco-free schools policy which prohibits the use of tobacco products in district buildings, on district
property, and in district vehicles by any person at any time; see BP 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools for language
implementing this mandate.

Students shall not possess, smoke, or use tobacco or any product containing tobacco or nicotine while
on campus, while attending school-sponsored activities, or while under the supervision and control of
district employees.  Prohibited products include, but are not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, miniature
cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel.  (Education Code 48900,
48901)

(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Note: Although state law does not define "tobacco products," the California Department of Education (CDE)
recommends that districts define "tobacco products" to include electronic cigarettes, electronic hookahs, and other
vapor-emitting devices.  According to the CDE, districts are increasingly reporting student possession of these nicotine
delivery devices for purposes of prohibited drug use (i.e., as drug paraphernalia).

Students' possession or use of electronic cigarettes, electronic hookahs, and other vapor-emitting
devices, with or without nicotine content, that mimic the use of tobacco products is also prohibited.

These prohibitions do not apply to a student's possession or use of his/her own prescription products.
However, student possession or use of prescription products in school shall be subject to the district's



2

policy and regulation for addressing the administration of medications on campus.  (Education Code
48900)

(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)

Prevention Instruction

Note:  The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice and the grade levels offered by the
district. Education Code 51202 requires the district to offer a course of study at the appropriate elementary and
secondary grade levels that includes the effects of tobacco upon the human body.  Education Code 51202 also requires
that the course of study in secondary grades include instruction on the effects of tobacco upon prenatal development.
See AR 6143 - Courses of Study. The state's content standards for health education include a number of standards at
selected grade levels from K-12 related to the health consequences of tobacco use.

The TUPE program provides resources for supplemental instruction in grades 6-12 that addresses specified topics; see
the accompanying administrative regulation. CDE's Guidelines for Tobacco Prevention, contained in its Getting Results
publication, recommend developmentally appropriate instruction in grades K-12, with instruction that is especially
intensive in grades 6-9 (particularly the transition year from elementary to middle school/junior high) and is reinforced
in high school.

The district shall may provide developmentally appropriate tobacco-use prevention instruction for
students at selected grade levels from K-12 pursuant to Education Code 51202.  Such instruction shall
be aligned with state content standards and the state curriculum framework for health education and
with any requirements of state and/or federal grant programs in which the district participates.

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

Intervention/Cessation Services

Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code
104420 and 104460, districts receiving TUPE funds must provide students with access to intervention and cessation
services and must provide pregnant and parenting minors with access to designated services.

The district may fulfill these requirements either through the direct provision of services or through referrals to available
services. See the accompanying administrative regulation.  Pursuant to Education Code 48900.5, such intervention
should be implemented to correct student behavior rather than suspension or other measures that may exclude a student
from instruction.

The district may provide or refer students to counseling, intensive education, and other intervention
services to assist in the cessation of tobacco use.  Such intervention services shall be provided as an
alternative to suspension for tobacco possession.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Program Planning

Health and Safety Code 104420 requires the CDE to give priority for TUPE funding to programs that, in addition to
targeting current tobacco users, target students most at risk for beginning to use tobacco. Student populations considered



3

to be "most at risk" are to be identified by the district through a local needs assessment, as provided in the following
paragraph.

The district's tobacco-use prevention and intervention program shall be based on an assessment of
tobacco-use problems in district schools and the community, an examination of existing services and
activities in the community, and a determination of high-risk student populations that are most in need
of district services.

Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. Health and Safety Code 104420 and
104435 require districts receiving TUPE funds, with assistance from the county office of education, to coordinate
efforts with the "lead local agency" in the community, defined in Health and Safety Code 104400 as the county or city
health department.

The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with the local health department and county office of
education in program planning and implementation. He/she may establish an advisory council
including students, parents/guardians, district staff, representatives of the local health department and
community organizations, law enforcement professionals, and/or others with demonstrated expertise in
tobacco prevention and cessation.

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Councils)
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

Note:  The following paragraph is for use by districts that receive TUPE funds and may be used by other districts at
their discretion.

The Superintendent or designee shall select tobacco-use prevention programs based on the model
program designs identified by the California Department of Education (CDE) and may adapt the model
to meet district needs.  (Health and Safety Code 104420)

Note:  Pursuant to TUPE Acceptance of Funds Guidance on the CDE's web site, TUPE grant funding will not be
awarded to an applicant that receives any funding or educational materials from the tobacco industry, or from any
agency which has received funding from the tobacco industry, for the purpose of implementing tobacco-use prevention
or intervention programs.

The Superintendent or designee shall not accept for distribution any materials or advertisements that
promote the use or sale of tobacco products.  He/she also shall not accept tobacco-use prevention or
intervention funds or materials from the tobacco industry or from any entity which is known to have
received funding from the tobacco industry.

(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion)
(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)

Program Evaluation

Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice. Districts that accept TUPE funds are
required by the CDE to administer the core California Healthy Kids Survey in the first year of funding and at least every
other year thereafter to assess the health-related behavior of a representative sample of students in grades 7, 9, and 11.
In addition, districts that receive funding through TUPE are required to complete the TUPE Annual Report by June 30
of each year.



4

To evaluate the effectiveness of the district's program and ensure accountability, the Superintendent or
designee shall biennially administer the California Healthy Kids Survey or other appropriate student
survey at selected grade levels in order to assess student attitudes toward tobacco and student use of
tobacco. He/she also shall annually report to the Board, and to the CDE if required, the data specified
in Health and Safety Code 104450.

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights)
(cf. 6162.8 - Research)

The results of program evaluations shall be used to refine program goals and objectives and make
changes as needed to strengthen program implementation.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
48900  Suspension or expulsion (grounds)
48900.5  Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception
48901  Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited
51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety
60041  Instructional materials, portrayal of effects of tobacco use
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
104350-104495  Tobacco-use prevention education
119405  Unlawful to sell or furnish electronic cigarettes to minors
PENAL CODE
308  Minimum age for tobacco possession
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17
6800  Definition, health assessment
6844-6847  Child Health and Disability Prevention program; health assessments
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
7111-7117  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21
1140.1-1140.34  Unlawful sale of cigarettes and smokeless tobacco to minors
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
88 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 8 (2005)

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
TUPE Acceptance of Funds Guidance
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools:  Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008
Health Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2003
Getting Results: Part II California Action Guide to Tobacco Use Prevention Education, 2000
WEST ED PUBLICATIONS
Guidebook for the California Healthy Kids Survey
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at/tupe.asp
California Department of Public Health, Tobacco Control: http://www.cdph.ca.gov/programs/tobacco
California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org
California Healthy Kids Survey:  http://www.wested.org/hks
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Smoking and Tobacco Use: http://www.cdc.gov/tobacco
U.S. Surgeon General:  http://www.surgeongeneral.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Regulation approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:                        May 10, 2011
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Students BP 5144.1 (a)

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS

The Governing Board of Education desires to provide district students access to educational
opportunities in an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures
their welfare and well-being, and promotes their learning and development.  The Board shall
develop rules and regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and
the disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including
suspension and/or expulsion.

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending,
and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law and the
accompanying administrative regulation.

Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when
his/her behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district
school or other school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the
following:  (Education Code 48900(s))

1. While on school grounds

2. While going to or coming from school

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly,
consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Appropriate Use of Suspension and Expulsion

Except when a student commits an act that violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e) or his/her
presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of correction
have failed to bring about proper conduct.



2

Except when a student commits an act listed in Education Code 48915(c), the Superintendent or
designee shall have the discretion to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the
student be expelled.

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

To correct the behavior of any student who is subject to discipline, the Superintendent or
designee shall, to the extent allowed by law, first use alternative disciplinary strategies specified
in AR 5144 - Discipline.  (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6)

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

Alternatives to suspension or expulsion also shall be used with students who are truant, tardy, or
otherwise absentStudents shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or
absenteeism from assigned school activities.

(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

Except for single acts of a grave nature or offenses for which suspension or expulsion is required
by law, suspension or expulsion shall be used only when other means of correction have failed to
bring about proper conduct or the student's presence causes a continuing danger to
himself/herself or others.

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending,
and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be those specified in law and administrative
regulation.  Suspended or expelled students shall be denied the privilege of participation in all
extra curricular activities during the period of suspension or expulsion.

District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly,
consistently, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.

District staff shall not suspend any student for disruption or willful defiance, unless the
suspension is warranted by documented repetitive behavior of the student or the disruption or
willful defiance occurred in conjunction with another violation for which the student may be
suspended.

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating
pattern of misbehavior that could lead to classroom or school removal.

Due Process



3

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and
expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law.  The Superintendent or
designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and
administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance

When suspending a student from class for committing an obscene act, engaging in habitual
profanity or vulgarity, disrupting school activities, or otherwise willfully defying valid staff
authority, the teacher of the class may require any parent/guardian who lives with the student to
attend a portion of the school day in the class from which the student is being suspended, to
assist in resolving the classroom behavior problems.  (Education Code 48900.1)

Teachers should reserve the option of required parental attendance for cases in which they have
determined that it is the best strategy to promote positive interaction between the teacher and the
student and his/her parents/guardians and to improve the student's behavior.

Any teacher requiring parental attendance pursuant to this policy shall apply the policy
uniformly to all students within the classroom.  (Education Code 48900.1)

When a teacher requires parental attendance, the principal shall send a written notice to the
parent/guardian stating that his/her attendance is required pursuant to law. and that, if there are
reasonable factors that may prevent the parent/guardian from complying with the requirement,
he/she should contact the school. (Education Code 48900.1)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

A parent/guardian who has received a written notice shall attend class as specified in the notice.
After completing the classroom visit and before leaving school premises, the parent/guardian
also shall meet with the principal or designee.  (Education Code 48900.1)

At the meeting with the student's parent/guardian, the principal or designee shall explain the
district's and school's discipline policies, including the disciplinary strategies that may be used to
achieve proper student conduct.

When a parent/guardian does not respond to the request to attend school, the principal or
designee shall contact him/her by telephone, mail, or otherany method that maintains the
confidentiality of the student's records.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)



4

District regulations and school-site rules for student discipline shall include procedures for
implementing parental attendance requirements.  Parents/guardians shall be notified of this
policy prior to its implementation.  (Education Code 48900.1)

Supervised Suspension Classroom

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of
the reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent
danger or threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated,
the Superintendent or designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which
meets the requirements of law.

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about
proper conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5)

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order

OnUpon voting to expel a case-by-case basisstudent, the Board may suspend enforcement of
anthe expulsion order may be suspended by the Board pursuant to the requirements of law and
administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48917)

Maintenance and Monitoring the Use of Suspension and ExpulsionOutcome Data

At the end of each school year, The Superintendent or designee shall annually present a report to
the Board regarding the use of suspension and/or expulsion in district schools.  The report shall
include, but is not limited to, a report of the outcome data which the district is required by law to
collect and data relatedpursuant to the effect of suspension and/orEducation Code 48900.8 and
48916.1, including the number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each
recommended expulsion on, the actions taken by the Board, the district's minority student
populations or groupingstypes of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the
students after the expulsion period.

The report shall be disaggregated by school and by numerically significant student subgroups,
including, but not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students,
English learners, foster youth, and students with disabilities.  The report also shall include
information about whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving school climate
as specified in its local control and accountability plan.

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
212.5  Sexual harassment
233  Hate violence



5

1981  Enrollment of students in community school
17292.5  Program for expelled students
32261  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
35145  Open board meetings
35146  Closed sessions (regarding suspensions)
35291  Rules (for government and discipline of schools)
35291.5  Rules and procedures on school discipline
48645.5  Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system
48660-48666 Community day schools
48853.5  Foster youth
48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion
48950  Speech and other communication
48980  Parental notifications
49073-49079  Privacy of student records
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan
CIVIL CODE
47  Privileged communication
48.8  Defamation liability
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1985-1997  Subpoenas; means of production
GOVERNMENT CODE
11455.20 Contempt
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
11014.5  Drug paraphernalia
11053-11058  Standards and schedules
LABOR CODE
230.7  Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf of a
child
PENAL CODE
31  Principal of a crime, defined
240  Assault defined
241.2  Assault fines
242  Battery defined
243.2  Battery on school property
243.4  Sexual battery
245  Assault with deadly weapon
245.6  Hazing
261  Rape defined
266c  Unlawful sexual intercourse
286  Sodomy defined
288  Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14
288a  Oral copulation
289  Penetration of genital or anal openings
PENAL CODE (continued)
417.27  Laser pointers
422.55  Hate crime defined
422.6  Interference with exercise of civil rights
422.7  Aggravating factors for punishment
422.75  Enhanced penalties for hate crimes
626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission
626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995
626.10 Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns
868.5  Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
729.6  Counseling



6

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18
921  Definitions, firearm
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1415(K)  Placement in alternative educational setting
7151  Gun-free schools
COURT DECISIONS
T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267
Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421
Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education
and Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321
Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807
Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182
John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014
WEB SITES
CSBA: http://www.csba.org
California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.oag.ca.gov
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-
2012-data-summary.pdf
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools:
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: August 9, 2011
revised: June 12, 2012
revised: April 9, 2013
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD

Students AR 5144.1

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS

Definitions

Suspension from school means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment purposes.
However, suspension does not mean any of the following:  (Education Code 48925)

1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student will
receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board of
Education for students of the same grade level.

2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students.

3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the
remainder of the class period without sending the student to the principal or designee as
provided in Education Code 48910.  Removal from a particular class shall not occur more than
once every five school days.

Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control, or the general
supervision, of school personnel.  (Education Code 48925)

Day means a calendar day unless otherwise specifically provided.  (Education Code 48925)

School day means a day upon which the schools of the district are in session or weekdays during the
summer recess.  (Education Code 48925)

Student includes a student's parent/guardian or legal counsel.  (Education Code 48925)

Principal's designee means one or more administrators or, if there is not a second administrator at one
school site, a certificated person specifically designated by the principal, in writing, to assist with
disciplinary procedures.  Only one such person may be designated at any time as the principal's
primary designee and only one such person may be designated as secondary designee for the school
year.  The names of such persons shall be on file in the principal's office.  (Education Code 48911)

School property, for the purposes described in Education Code 48900, includes, but is not limited to,
electronic files and databases.  (Education Code 48900(u))

Notice of Regulations

At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students and
parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related to discipline, including suspension
and expulsion.  (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980)



2

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion

AnyActs for which a student, including a student with disabilities, may be subject to
suspensionsuspended or expulsion when it is determined that he/sheexpelled shall be only those
specified as follows:

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person or;
willfully used force or violence upon another person, except in self-defense; or committed as an
aider or abettor, as adjudged by a juvenile court, a crime of physical violence in which the
victim suffered great or serious bodily injury (Education Code 48900(a) and (t))

A student who aids or abets the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person,
as defined in Penal Code 31, may be suspended, but not expelled.  However, such a student may be
suspended or expelled pursuant to Education Code 48900(a) when he/she has been adjudged by a
juvenile court to have committed, as an aider or abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the
victim suffered great or serious bodily injury.  (Education Code 48900(t))

2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object,
unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written
permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal or
designee's concurrence  (Education Code 48900(b))

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any
controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant of any kind  (Education Code 48900(c))

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in
Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then
sold, delivered, or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and
represented same as such controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant  (Education
Code 48900(d))

5. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion  (Education Code 48900(e))

6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property (Education Code
48900(f))

7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property  (Education Code 48900(g))



3

8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but
not limited to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff,
chew packets, and betel, except that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or
possessing his/her own prescription products  (Education Code 48900(h))

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity  (Education Code
48900(i))

10. Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code 11014.5  (Education Code 48900(j))

11. Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors,
teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the
performance of their duties  (Education Code 48900(k))

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

12. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property  (Education Code 48900(l))

13. Possessed an imitation firearm  (Education Code 48900(m))

Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a
firearm.  (Education Code 48900(m))

14. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4  (Education
Code 48900(n))

15. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a
school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness
and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness (Education Code 48900(o))

16. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma
(Education Code 48900(p))

17. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing  (Education Code 48900(q))

Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution,
which is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in
physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective student. Hazing does not include
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.

18. Engaged in an act of bullying  (Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or more
students that has or can reasonably be predicted to have the effect of placing a reasonable



4

student in fear of harm to himself/herself or his/her property; cause the student to experience a
substantially detrimental effect on his/her physical or mental health; or cause the student to
experience substantial interferences with his/her academic performance or ability to participate
in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.

Bullying shall include any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or
intimidation, as defined in Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 (items #20-2221-23
below), that has any of the effects described above on a reasonable student.

Electronic act means the creation or transmission of a communication originated on or off
school site, including, but not limited to, a message, text, sound, image, or post on a social
network Internet web site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a
telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager. A
post on a social network Internet web site shall include, but is not limited to, the posting or
creation of a burn page or the creation of a credible impersonation or false profile for the
purpose of causing a reasonable student any of the effects of bullying described above.

Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been
identified as a student with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in
conduct for a person of his/her age, or for a person of his/her age with his/her disability.
(Education Code 48900(r))

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

1919. Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person, as
defined in Penal Code 31.  (Education Code 48900(t))

20. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property.  (Education Code
48900.7)

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to
commit a crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person or property
damage in excess of $1,000, with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat,
even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out.  (Education Code 48900.7)

A student in grades 4-12 is also subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it is
determined that he/she:

2021. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5  (Education Code 48900.2)

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a
reasonable person of the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to
have a negative impact upon the victim's academic performance or to create an intimidating,
hostile, or offensive educational environment.  (Education Code 212.5, 48900.2)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)



5

2122. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence as
defined in Education Code 233  (Education Code 48900.3)

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75.  Such acts
include injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's civil rights,
or damaging a victim's property because of the victim's race, ethnicity, religion, nationality,
disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation; a perception of the
presence of any of those characteristics in the victim; or the victim's association with a person
or group with one or more of those actual or perceived characteristics.  (Education Code 233;
Penal Code 422.55)

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

2223. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or
students that is sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected
effect of materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the rights
of school personnel or students by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment
(Education Code 48900.4)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

A student may be suspended or expelled for any of the acts listed above if the act is related to school
activity or school attendance occurring at any district school or within any other school district, at any
time, including, but not limited to, the following:  (Education Code 48900(s))

1. While on school grounds

2. While going to or coming from school

(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus

(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance

A teacher may remove anya student from his/her class for the remainder of the day and the following
day for any actonly for acts specified in Education Code 48900 and listed inunder "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion" above.  (Education Code 48910)

When removing a student from his/her class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to the
principal or designee and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action.  If that
action requires the continuing presence of the student at school, he/she shall be appropriately
supervised during the class periods from which he/she has been removed.  (Education Code 48910)



6

As soon as possible, after the teacher decides to remove the student, he/she shall ask the student's
parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher conference regarding the removal.  A counselor or
psychologist may attend the conference if it is practicable, and a school administrator shall attend if
either the parent/guardian or teacher so requests.  (Education Code 48910)

A student removed from class shall not be returned to class during the period of removal without the
approval of the teacher of the class and the principal or designee.  (Education Code 48910)

A student removed from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of removal.
However, if a student is assigned to more than one class per day, he/she may be placed in anycontinue
to attend other regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which the
studenthe/she was removed.  (Education Code 48910)

The teacher of any class from which a student is removed may require the student to complete any
assignments and tests missed during the removal.  (Education Code 48913)

Pursuant to Board policy, a teacher may require the parent/guardian of a student whom the teacher has
removed to attend a portion of a school day in his/her child's classroom.  When a teacher makes this
request, the principal shall send the parent/guardian a written notice that the parent/guardian's
attendance is requested pursuant to law.  (Education Code 48900.1)

The notice shall specify that the attendance may be on either the date the student is scheduled to return
to class or within one week thereafter.

This notice shall also:
The notice shall:

1. Inform the parent/guardian when his/her presence is expected and by what means he/she may
arrange an alternate date

2. State that if the parent/guardian does not have a means of transportation to school, he/she may
ride the school bus with the student

3. AskDirect the parent/guardian to meet with the principal after the visit and before leaving
school, as required by Education Code 48900.1

4. Direct the parent/guardian to contact the school if there are reasonable factors that would
prevent him/her from complying with the attendance requirement

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student found at school or at
a school activity to be:  (Education Code 48915)(c))

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, unless
the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated school
employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g)



7

3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

In addition, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension upon a first offense if
he/she determines that the student violated any of items #1-5 listed under "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" above or if the student's presence causes a danger to persons.  (Education Code 48900.5)

For all other offenses, a student may be suspended only when the Superintendent or principal has
determined that other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct in the student.
(Education Code 48900.5)

When other means of correction are implemented prior to imposing suspension or supervised
suspension upon a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall document the other means
of correction used and retain them in the student's record.  (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Length of Suspension

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than five
consecutive school days unless the suspension is extended pending expulsion.  (Education Code
48911)

A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year unless,
for purposes of adjustment, the.  However, when a student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular
school, an opportunity school, or continuation school or class for the purpose of adjustment, he/she
may be suspended for not more than 30 school days in a school year. The district may count
suspensions that occur while a student is enrolled in another school district toward the maximum
number of days for which the student may be suspended in any school year.  (Education Code 48903,
48911, 48912)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

These restrictions on the number of days of suspension shall not apply when the suspension is
extended pending an expulsion.  (Education Code 48911)

Due Process Procedures for Suspension

Suspensions shall be initiated according toimposed in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Informal Conference: Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference conducted by
the Superintendent, principal, or designee with the student and, whenever practicable, the
teacher, supervisor, or school employee who referred the student to the principal.  At the
conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action, presented



8

with the evidence against him/her, and given the opportunity to present his/her version and
evidence in support of his/her defense.  (Education Code 48911)

This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that an
emergency situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or health of
students or school personnel.  If a student is suspended without this conference, both the
parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student's right to return to school for the
purpose of the conference.  The conference shall be held within two school days, unless the
student waives his/her right to it or is physically unable to attend for any reason.  In such a
case, the conference shall be held as soon as the student is physically able to return to school.
(Education Code 48911)

2. Administrative Actions: All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the
principal or designee.  A school employee shall report the suspension, including the name of
the student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent or designee.  (Education
Code 48911)

3. Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall make a
reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student
is suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension.  (Education
Code 48911)

This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student.  (Education Code
48900.8)

In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school.  If
school officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the
suspension, the notice may add that state law requires the parent/guardian to respond to such
requests without delay.

4. Parent/Guardian Conference: Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may meet
with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the suspension, the school
policy involved, and any other pertinent matter.  (Education Code 48914)

Although the parent/guardian is required to respond without delay to a request for a conference
about his/her child's behavior, no penalties may be imposed on the student for the failure of the
parent/guardian to attend such a conference.  The student may not be denied readmission
reinstatement solely because the parent/guardian failed to attend the conference.  (Education
Code 48911)

5. Extension of Suspension: If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended student
from any school or the suspension of a student for the balance of the semester from
continuation school, the Superintendent or designee may, in writing, extend the suspension
until such time as the Board has made a decision. (Education Code 48911)

Any extension of the original period of suspension shall be preceded by notice of such
extension with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student an
opportunity to be heard.  This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting requested
by the student or parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension.  Extension of the



9

suspension may be made only if the Superintendent or designee determines, following a
meeting in which the student and the student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that
the student's presence at the school or at an alternative school would endanger persons or
property or threaten to disrupt the instructional process.  (Education Code 48911)

If the student involved is a foster youth, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the district
liaison for foster youth of the need to invite the student's attorney and a representative of the
appropriate county child welfare agency to attend the meeting.  (Education Code 48853.5,
48911, 48918.1)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

In addition to suspending a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may provide services or
require the student to participate in an alternative disciplinary program designed to correct his/her
behavior and keep him/her in school.

Suspension by the Board

The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed inunder "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" above and within the limits specified inunder "Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or
Designee" above.  (Education Code 48912)

The Board may suspend a student enrolled in a continuation school or class for a period not longer than
the remainder of the semester if any of the acts listed inunder "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion"
occurred. The suspension shall meet the requirements of Education Code 48915.  (Education Code
48912.5)

When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except expulsion)
against any student, it shall hold a closed session if a public hearing would lead to disclosure of
information violating a student's right to privacy under Education Code 49073-49079.  (Education
Code 35146, 48912)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The Board shall provide the student and his/her parent/guardian with written notice of the closed
session by registered or certified mail or personal service.  Upon receiving this notice, the student or
parent/guardian may request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if made in writing
within 48 hours after receipt of the Board's notice. However, any discussion that conflicts with any
other student's right to privacy still shall be held in closed session.  (Education Code 35146, 48912)

Supervised Suspension Classroom

A student for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated and who poses no imminent danger or
threat to the school, students, or staff may be assigned to a supervised suspension classroom in a
separate classroom, building, or site for the entire period of suspension.  The following conditions shall
apply:  (Education Code 48911.1)

1. The supervised suspension classroom shall be staffed in accordance with law.



10

2. The student shall have access to appropriate counseling services.

3. The supervised suspension classroom shall promote completion of schoolwork and tests missed
by the student during the suspension.

4. The student shall be responsible for contacting his/her teacher(s) to receive assignments to be
completed in the supervised suspension classroom. The teacher(s) shall provide all assignments
and tests that the student will miss while suspended.  If no such work is assigned, the person
supervising the suspension classroom shall assign schoolwork.

At the time a student is assigned to a supervised suspension classroom, the principal or designee shall
notify the student's parent/guardian in person or by telephone.  When the assignment is for longer than
one class period, this notification shall be made in writing.  (Education Code 48911.1)

Authority to Expel

A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j))

The Board shall expel, as required by law, any student found to have committed any offense listed
below under "Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion."  (Education Code 48915)

For all other grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion," the Board shall
order a student expelled, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, principal, or designee, only
if the Board makes a finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 48915(b) and (e))

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper
conduct

2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger to
the physical safety of the student or others

Mandatory Recommendation forSuperintendent, Principal, or Designee's Authority to
Recommend Expulsion

Unless the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that expulsion should not be
recommended under the circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the
conduct, he/she shall recommend a student's expulsion for any of the following acts:  (Education Code
48915(a))

1. Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense

2. Possession of any knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g), explosive,) or other dangerous
object of no reasonable use to the student

3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance as listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-
11058, except for (a) the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce of
marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis, or (b) the student's possession of over-the-counter
medication for his/her use or other medication prescribed for him/her by a physician



11

4. Robbery or extortion

5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee

In determining whether or not to recommend the expulsion of a student, the Superintendent, principal,
or designee shall act as quickly as possible to ensure that the student does not lose instructional time.
(Education Code 48915)

Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend that the Board expel any student found at
school or at a school activity to be:  (Education Code 48915(c))

1. Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, unless
the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a certificated
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence

However, possession of an imitation firearm, as defined in Education Code 48900(m), shall not
be regarded as an offense requiring a mandatory recommendation for expulsion and mandatory
expulsion.

2. Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g) at another person

3. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

5. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

Upon finding that the student committed any of the above acts, the Board shall expel the student.
(Education Code 48915)

Student's Right to Expulsion Hearing

Any student recommended for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether he/she
should be expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the Superintendent, principal,
or designee determines that the student has committed one of the acts listed above under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion." (Education Code 48918(a))

The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not more
than 30 calendar days.  The request for postponement shall be in writing.  Any subsequent
postponement may be granted at the Board's discretion.  (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time requirements
for conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent or designee may, for good cause, extend the
time period by an additional five school days.  Reasons for the extension shall be included as a part of
the record when the expulsion hearing is held.  (Education Code 48918(a))



12

If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing due to a
summer recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess shall not be
counted as school days. The days not counted during the recess may not exceed 20 school days, as
defined in Education Code 48925.  Unless the student requests in writing that the expulsion hearing be
postponed, the hearing shall be held not later than 20 calendar days prior to the first day of the next
school year.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded without
unnecessary delay.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Stipulated Expulsion

After a determination that one of the groundsa student has committed an offense listed above under
"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" has occurredfor which expulsion is permitted or mandatory,
the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall offer the student and his/her parent/guardian the option
to waive a hearing and stipulate to the expulsion. The offer shall be made only after the student or
his/her parent/guardian has been given written notice of the expulsion hearing pursuant to Education
Code 48918.

The stipulation agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by the student and his/her
parent/guardian. The stipulation agreement shall include notice of all the rights that the student is
waiving, including the waiving of his/her right to have a full hearing, to appeal the expulsion to the
County Board of Education, and to consult legal counsel.

A stipulated expulsion shall be effective upon approval by the Board.

Rights of Complaining Witness

An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed for
one school day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental, or emotional needs of a student
who is the complaining witness.  (Education Code 48918.5)

Whenever the Superintendent or designee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses allegations
of sexual assault or sexual battery, he/she shall give the complaining witness a copy of the district's
suspension and expulsion policy and regulation and shall advise the witness of his/her right to:
(Education Code 48918.5)

1. Receiever1. Receive five days' notice of his/her scheduled testimony at the hearing

2. Have up to two adult support persons of his/her choosing present at the hearing at the time
he/she testifies

3. Have a closed hearing during the time he/she testifies

Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent or designee
shall immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from personal or
telephone contact with each other during the time when an expulsion process is pending.  (Education
Code 48918.5)

Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing



13

Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's
parent/guardian at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing.  The notice shall include:
(Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b))

1. The date and place of the hearing.

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed expulsion is
based.

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation.

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code
48915.1, to provide information about the student's status in the district to any other district in
which the student seeks enrollment. This obligation applies when a student is expelled for acts
other than those described in Education Code 48915(a) or (c).

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be
represented by legal counsel or by a nonattorney advisor.

Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in California
and is an active member of the State Bar of California.

Nonattorney advisor means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is familiar
with the facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's parent/guardian to
provide assistance at the hearing.

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing.

7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing.

8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary
evidence on the student's behalf, including witnesses.

Additional Notice of Expulsion Hearing for Foster Youth

At least 10 days prior to a hearing to determine if a student who is a foster youth as defined under
Education Code 48853.5 should be expelled for an offense not requiring a mandatory

recommendation for expulsion, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's attorney and a
representative of an appropriate county child welfare agency.  If the hearing is pursuant to an offense
requiring a mandatory expulsion recommendation, the Superintendent or designee may provide the
same notification. The notice shall be provided by the most cost-effective method possible, including
by email or a telephone call.  (Education Code 48918.1)

Conduct of Expulsion Hearing

1. Closed Session: Notwithstanding the provisions of Government Code 54953 and Education
Code 35145, the Board shall conduct a hearing to consider the expulsion of the student in a



14

session closed to the public unless the student requests in writing at least five days prior to the
hearing that the hearing be a public meeting.  If such a request is made, the meeting shall be
public unless another student's privacy rights would be violated.  (Education Code 48918(c))

Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in
closed session to deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled.  If the
Board admits any other person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the student, and the
counsel of the student also shall be allowed to attend the closed session.  (Education Code
48918(c))

If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in
public, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her testimony heard in closed
session when testifying in public would threaten serious psychological harm to the witness and
when there are no alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm, including, but not
limited to, videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination in another place
communicated to the hearing room by closed-circuit television.  (Education Code 48918(c))

2. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any
means, including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made.  (Education Code 48918(g))

3. Subpoenas: Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue subpoenas,
at the request of either the student or the Superintendent or designee, for the personal
appearance at the hearing of any person who actually witnessed the action that gave rise to the
recommendation for expulsion.  After the hearing has commenced, the Board or the hearing
officer or administrative panel may issue such subpoenas at the request of the student or the
County Superintendent of Schools or designee.  All subpoenas shall be issued in accordance
with Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 and enforced in accordance with Government Code
11455.20.  (Education Code 48918(i))

Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent or designee to the issuance of
subpoenas may be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so requested
by the student, before the meeting.  The Board's decision in response to such an objection shall
be final and binding.  (Education Code 48918(i))

If the Board determines, or if the hearing officer or administrative panel finds and submits to
the Board, that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by testifying at the
hearing, a subpoena shall not be issued to compel the personal attendance of that witness at the
hearing.  However, that witness may be compelled to testify by means of a sworn declaration as
described in item #4 below.  (Education Code 48918(i))

4. Presentation of Evidence: Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion
hearing, but relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of
evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  The decision
of the Board to expel shall be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed any
of the acts pursuant to Education Code 48900 and listed in "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion" above.  (Education Code 48918(h))



15

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing.  Although no finding shall
be based solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses
whose disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.  (Education Code 48918(f))

In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence describing the
reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record.

5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses: The following procedures shall be observed when a
hearing involves allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student:  (Education Code
48918, 48918.5)

a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify.

b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support persons,
including, but not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present during his/her
testimony.

c. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the
hearing is confidential.

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person whom he/she finds
is disrupting the hearing.

e. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted in
accordance with Penal Code 868.5.

f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness shall be
presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person conducting the hearing
determines that extraordinary circumstances require the evidence to be heard.  Before
such a determination is made, the complaining witness shall be given notice and an
opportunity to oppose the introduction of this evidence.  In the hearing on the
admissibility of this evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to be
represented by a parent/guardian, legal counsel, or other support person.  Reputation or
opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of a complaining witness shall not be
admissible for any purpose.

g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the complaining
witness and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district shall provide a
nonthreatening environment.

(1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the use of
the complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony.

(2) At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining witness
shall be allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and cross-
examination during which he/she may leave the hearing room.

(3) The person conducting the hearing may:



16

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a less
intimidating environment for the complaining witness

(b) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to the
hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the
testimony during other hours

(c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining witness
to the witness stand

6. Decision: The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40 school
days after the student is removed from his/her school of attendance, unless the student requests
in writing that the decision be postponed.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Alternative Expulsion Hearing:  Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel

Instead of conducting an expulsion hearing itself, the Board may contract with the county hearing
officer or with the Office of Administrative Hearings of the State of California for a hearing officer.
Alternatively, the Board may appoint an impartial administrative panel composed of three or more
certificated personnel, none of whom shall be members of the Board or on the staff of the school in
which the student is enrolled.  (Education Code 48918(d))

A hearing conducted by the hearing officer or administrative panel shall conform to the same
procedures applicable to a hearing conducted by the Board as specified above in "Conduct of
Expulsion Hearing," including the requirement to issue itsa decision within 40 school days of the
student's removal from school, unless the student requests that the decision be postponed.  (Education
Code 48918(a) and (d))

The hearing officer or administrative panel shall, within three school days after the hearing, determine
whether to recommend expulsion of the student to the Board.  If expulsion is not
recommended, the expulsion proceeding shall be terminated and the student shall be immediately
reinstated. The Superintendent or designee shall place the student in a classroom instructional program,
any other instructional program, a rehabilitation program, or any combination of these programs after
consulting with district staff, including the student's teachers, and with the student's parent/guardian.
The decision to not recommend expulsion shall be final.  (Education Code 48918(e))

If expulsion is recommended, findings of fact in support of the recommendation shall be prepared and
submitted to the Board.  All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based solely on the
evidence presented at the hearing. The Board may accept the recommendation based either upon a
review of the findings of fact and recommendations submitted or upon the results of any
supplementary hearing the Board may order.  (Education Code 48918(f))

In accordance with Board policy, the hearing officer or administrative panel may recommend that the
Board suspend the enforcement of the expulsion for a period of one year.  (Education Code 48917,
48918)

Final Action by the Board



17

Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or public session by the Board, a hearing officer,
or an administrative panel or is waived through the signing of a stipulated expulsion agreement, the
final action to expel shall be taken by the Board at a public meeting.  (Education Code 48918(j))

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

If the Board conducts the hearing and reaches a decision not to expel, this decision shall be final and
the student shall be reinstated immediately.

Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for
readmission to a school within the district.  For a student expelled for any act listed under "Mandatory
Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion" above, this date shall be one year from the date the
expulsion occurred, except that the Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case basis.  For a
student expelled for other acts, this date shall be no later than the last day of the semester following the
semester in which the expulsion occurred.  If an expulsion is ordered during summer session or the
intersession period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be
reviewed for readmission not later than the last day of the semester following the summer session or
intersession period in which the expulsion occurred.  (Education Code 48916)

At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's rehabilitation,
which may include:  (Education Code 48916)

1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission

2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education
assessments, job training, counseling, employment, community service, or other rehabilitative
programs

With parent/guardian consent, students who have been expelled for reasons relating to controlled
substances or alcohol may be required to enroll in a county-sponsored drug rehabilitation program
before returning to school.  (Education Code 48916.5)

Written Notice to Expel

The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student or
parent/guardian.  This notice shall include the following:

1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for suspension or expulsion
listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion"  (Education Code 48900.8)

2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to the student and
his/her parent/guardian  (Education Code 48916)

3. Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board of Education (Education Code
48918)

4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the time of
expulsion  (Education Code 48918)



18

5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the
student seeks to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to Education
Code 48915.1  (Education Code 48918)

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order

In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an expulsion
order, the Board shall take into account the following criteria:

1. The student's pattern of behavior

2. The seriousness of the misconduct

3. conductThe student's attitude toward the misconduct and his/her willingness to follow a
rehabilitation program

The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be governed by the following:

1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the student to a school,
class, or program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation. This rehabilitation program may
provide for the involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's education.
However, a parent/guardian's refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program shall not be
considered in the Board's determination as to whether the student has satisfactorily completed
the rehabilitation program.  (Education Code 48917)

2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student shall be
on probationary status.  (Education Code 48917)

3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if the
student commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above or
violates any of the district's rules and regulations governing student conduct.  (Education Code
48917)

4. When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be
expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order.  (Education Code 48917)

5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate the
student in a district school.  Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging of any or
all records of the expulsion proceedings.  (Education Code 48917)

6. The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend the
enforcement of an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or
parent/guardian.  The notice shall inform the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the
expulsion to the County Board, the alternative educational placement to be provided to the
student during the period of expulsion, and the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to
inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of his/her status with the expelling
district, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1(b).  (Education Code 48918(j))



19

7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and
requirements for the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board.
(Education Code 48917)

Right to Appeal

The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the County
Board. The appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if the expulsion
order is suspended and the student is placed on probation.  (Education Code 48919)

The student shall submit a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting
documents from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the County
Board.  The district shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school days following the
student's written request.  (Education Code 48919)

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities

Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the principal or designee shall notify appropriate
city or county law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may have violated
Penal Code 245.  (Education Code 48902)

The principal or designee also shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of
any student acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled substance. In
addition, law enforcement authorities shall be notified regarding any acts by students regarding the
possession, sale, or furnishmentfurnishing of firearms, explosives, or other dangerous weapons in
violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5) or Penal Code 626.9 and 626.10.  (Education Code
48902)

Within one school day after a student's suspension or expulsion, the principal or designee shall notify
appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other appropriate means, of
any student acts which may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), relating to the possession, use,
offering, or sale of controlled substances, alcohol, or intoxicants of any kind.  (Education Code 48902)

Post-Expulsion Placements

The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is:  (Education Code 48915,
48915.01)

1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems

2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any elementary
school, unless the program is offered at a community day school established at such a site

3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)



20

When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so certifies,
students expelled for acts described in items #6-13 and #20-2221-23 under "Grounds for

Suspension and Expulsion" above may be referred to a program of study that is provided at another
comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at an elementary school.  (Education Code
48915)

The program for a student expelled from any of grades K-6 shall not be combined or merged with
programs offered to students in any of grades 7-12.  (Education Code 48916.1)

Readmission After Expulsion

Readmission procedures shall be as follows:

1. On the date set by the Board when it ordered the expulsion, the district shall consider
readmission of the student.  (Education Code 48916)

2. The Superintendent or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian and the
student. At the conference, the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the
Superintendent or designee shall verify that the provisions of this plan have been met.  School
regulations shall be reviewed and the student and parent/guardian shall be asked to indicate in
writing their willingness to comply with these regulations.

3. The Superintendent or designee shall transmit to the Board his/her recommendation regarding
readmission. The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session if information
would be disclosed in violation of Education Code 49073- 49079.  If a written request for open
session is received from the parent/guardian or adult student, it shall be honored.

4. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and
parent/guardian, by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission.

5. The Board may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the conditions
of the rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to campus safety or to
other district students or employees.  (Education Code 48916)

6. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to continue
the student's placement in the alternative educational program initially selected or to place the
student in another program that serves expelled students, including placement in a county
community school.  (Education Code 48916)

7. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian describing
the reasons for denying readmittance into the regular program.  This notice shall indicate the
Board's determination of the educational program which the Board has chosen.  The student
shall enroll in that program unless the parent/guardian chooses to enroll the student in another
school district.  (Education Code 48916)

No student shall be denied readmission into the district based solely on the student's arrest,
adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, detention in a



21

juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other such contact with the juvenile justice
system.  (Education Code 48645.5)

Maintenance of Records

The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific cause(s).
(Education Code 48900.8)

Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record, and
sent to any school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that school.
(Education Code 48918(k))

The Superintendent or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request for
information about an expulsion from this district.  (Education Code 48915.1)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

Outcome Data

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain the following data:  (Education Code 48900.8, 48916.1)

1. The number of students recommended for expulsion

2. The specific grounds for each recommended expulsion

3. Whether the student was subsequently expelled

4. Whether the expulsion order was suspended

5. The type of referral made after the expulsion

6. The disposition of the student after the end of the expulsion period

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate student data collected based on race, color, nationality, religion, disability,
and other categories protected from discrimination under the law.

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: August 9, 2011
revised: June 12, 2012
revised: April 9, 2013
revised:        June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



Students E 5145.6(a)

PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS

Note: The following exhibit lists notices which the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians.  However,
there are other notices that districts are recommended to distribute (e.g., the notice included in AR 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment regarding the rights of transgender and gender-nonconforming students and the
opportunity for a student to inform the district whenever his/her participation in a sex-segregated program or activity
with a student of the opposite biological sex would be against the student’s religious beliefs and/or practices or a
violation of his/her right to privacy).

Unless otherwise indicated, code numbers below refer to Education Code sections.

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  Annually

Beginning of each school 17612, 48980.3 AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product,
year active ingredients, Internet

address to access information

By February 1 35256 BP 0510 School Accountability
Report Card provided

Beginning of each school 35291, 48980 AR 5144 District and site discipline
year AR 5144.1 rules

Beginning of each school 46010.1 BP 5113 Absence for confidential
year medical services

Beginning of each school 48980 BP 6111 Schedule of minimum days
year

Beginning of each school 48980, 231.5; AR 5145.7 Sexual harassment policy
year 5 CCR 4917 as related to students

Beginning of each school 48980, 32255- AR 5145.8 Right to refrain from harmful
year 32255.6 or destructive use of animals

Beginning of each school 48980, 35160.5, AR 5111.1 All statutory attendance
year 46600-46611, AR 5116.1 options, available local

48204 AR 5117 attendance options, options for
meeting residency

Beginning of each school 48980, 46014 BP 5113 Absence for religious
year, if Board allows AR 5113 exercises or purposes
such absence

Beginning of each school 48980, 48205 BP 5113 Excused absences; grade/credit
year AR 5113 cannot be reduced due to

AR 6154 excused absence if work or test
has been completed



2

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school 48980, 48206.3, AR 6183 Availability of home/hospital
year 48207, 48208 instruction for students with

temporary disabilities

Beginning of each school 48980, 49403 BP 5141.31 Consent to school
year immunization program

Beginning of each school 48980, 49423, AR 5141.21 Administration of
year 49480 prescribed medication

Beginning of each school 48980, 49451; AR 5141.3 Right to refuse consent to
year 20 USC 1232h physical examination

Beginning of each school 48980, 49472 BP 5143 Availability of
year insurance

Beginning of each school 49013; 5 CCR AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures,
year 4622 available appeals, civil law

remedies

Beginning of each school 49063 AR 5125 Challenge, review, and
year AR 5125.3 expunging of records

Beginning of each school 49063, 49069; AR 5125 Student records: inspect and
year 20 USC 1232g; review, access, types, location,

34 CFR 99.7 persons responsible, location
of log, access criteria, cost of
copies, amendment requests,
criteria to determine legitimate
educational interest, course
prospectus availability

Beginning of each school 49063, 49073; AR 5125.1 Release of directory
year 20 USC 1232g; information

34 CFR 99.37

Beginning of each school 49520, 48980; AR 3553 Free and reduced price
year 42 USC 1758; meals

7 CFR 245.5

Beginning of each school 56301 BP 6164.4 Parental rights re: special
year education identification,

referral, assessment,
instructional planning,
implementation and review,
and procedures for initiating
a referral for assessment

Beginning of each school 58501, 48980 AR 6181 Alternative schools
year



3

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

I.  Annually (continued)

Beginning of each school Health and Safety AR 5141.6 Availability of dental fluoride
year Code 104855 treatment; opportunity to

accept or deny treatment

Annually 5 CCR 852 AR 6162.51 Student's participation in state
assessments; option to request
exemption from testing

Beginning of each school 20 USC 1232h AR 5022 Notice of privacy policy and
year BP 6162.8 dates of activities re: survey,

health examination, or collection
of personal information for
marketing; process to opt out
of such activities

Beginning of each school 20 USC 6311; AR 4112.24 Right to request information
year, if district receives 34 CFR 200.61 AR 4222 re: professional qualifications
Title I funds of child's teacher and

paraprofessional

Beginning of each school 20 USC 6316 AR 0520.2 Availability of supplemental
year, if any district school has educational services, identity
been identified for program of providers, description of improvement
or corrective action services, qualifications,

effectiveness of providers

Beginning of each school 34 CFR 104.8, BP 0410 Nondiscrimination
year 106.9 BP 6178

Beginning of each school 40 CFR 763.84, AR 3514 Availability of asbestos
year to parent, teacher, and 763.93 management plan; any
employee organizations or, in inspections, response actions
their absence, individuals or post-response actions

planned or in progress



4

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

Beginning in grade 7, 221.5, 48980 BP 6164.2 Course selection and
at least once prior to course career counseling
selection and career counseling

When child first enrolls 32390, 48980 AR 5142.1 Fingerprinting program
in a public school, if
the school offers a
fingerprinting program

Upon registration in K-6, if 39831.5 AR 3543 School bus safety rules and
students have not previously information, list of stops, rules
been transported of conduct, red light crossing

instructions, bus danger zones,
walking to and from stops

Beginning of each school 44808.5, 48980 AR 5112.5 Open campus
year for high school students,
if high school is open campus

Beginning of each school 48980, 51225.3 AR 6146.1 How each high school
year in grades 9-12, if district graduation requirement does or
allows career technical education does not satisfy college
(CTE) course to satisfy entrance a-g course criteria;
graduation requirement list of district CTE courses that

satisfy a-g course criteria

Beginning of each school 48980, 60850 AR 6162.52 Requirement to pass the high
year in grades 9-12 and when school exit exam including:
high school student transfers date of exam, requirements for
into the district passing, consequences of not

passing, and that passing is a
condition of graduation

When students entering grade 7 49452.7 AR 5141.3 Specified information on type
2 diabetes

en in kindergarten, 49452.8 AR 5141.32 Requirement for oral health
or first grade if not previously assessment, explanation of
enrolled in public school law, importance of oral health,

agency contact, privacy rights

Beginning of each school year 51229, 48980 AR 6143 College admission
for students in grades 9-12 requirements, UC and CSU

web sites that list certified
courses, description of CTE,
CDE Internet address, how
students may meet with
counselors



5

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career

Beginning of each school 51938, 48980 AR 6142.1 Explanation of sex and HIV/
year for students in grades AIDS instruction; right to view
7-12 A/V materials, who's teaching,

request specific Education
Code sections, right to excuse

Within 20 working days of 60641; AR 6162.51 Results of tests; test
receiving results of 5 CCR 863 purpose, individual score
standardized achievement tests and intended use
or, if results not available in
school year, 20 days of start of
next school year

When child is enrolled Health and Safety AR 5141.32 Health screening
in kindergarten Code 124100 examination

To students in grades 11-12, 5 CCR 11523 AR 6146.2 Notice of proficiency
early enough to enable examination provided
registration for fall test under Education Code 48412

To secondary students, if 20 USC 7908 AR 5125.1 Notice that parents may
district receives Title I funds request district to not release

name, address, phone number
of child to military recruiters
without prior written consent

Upon receipt of a complaint 262.3 AR 1312.3 Civil law remedies
alleging discrimination available to complainants

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur

When student has been placed 310-311; 5 CCR AR 6174 Student's placement in
in structured English 11309 program, opportunity to apply
immersion program for parental exception waiver,

other rights of student relative
to such placements

When determining whether an 313; 5 CCR 11303 AR 6174 Description of reclassification
English learner should be process, opportunity for
reclassified as fluent English parent/guardian to participate
proficient

When student is identified 440; 20 USC 7012 AR 6174 Reason for classification, level
as English learner and district of English proficiency,
receives Title III funds, not description of program(s),
later than 30 days after option to decline program or
beginning of school year or choose alternate, exit
within two weeks of placement requirements of program
if identified during school year



6

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur

Before high school student 17288 None University campus buildings
attends specialized may not meet Education Code
secondary program on a requirements for structural
university campus safety

At least 72 hours before 17612 AR 3514.2 Intended use of pesticide
use of pesticide product product
not included in annual list

To members of athletic 32221.5 AR 5143 Offer of insurance; no-cost and
teams low-cost program options

If school has lost its WASC 35178.4 BP 6190 Loss of status, potential
accreditation status consequences

At least six months before 35183 AR 5132 Dress code policy requiring
implementing uniform policy schoolwide uniform

Before implementing a 37616 BP 6117 Year-round schedule
year-round schedule

When interdistrict transfer 46601 AR 5117 Appeal process
is requested and not approved
or denied within 30 days

Before early entry to 48000 AR 5111 Effects, advantages and
kindergarten, if offered disadvantages of early entry

When student identified as 48070.5 AR 5123 Student at risk of
being at risk of retention retention

When student excluded due to 48213 AR 5112.2 Student has been excluded
quarantine, contagious or BP 5141.33 from school
infectious disease, danger to
safety or health

Before already admitted 48216; AR 5141.31 Need to submit evidence of
student is excluded for lack 17 CCR 6040 immunization or exemption
of immunization within 10 school days; referral

to medical care

When a student is 48260.5, 48262 AR 5113.1 Truancy, parental obligation,
classified a truant availability of alternative

programs, student
consequences, need for
conference

When a truant is referred 48263 AR 5113.1 Name and address of SARB
to a SARB or probation or probation department and
department reason for referral



7

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When a school is identified on 48354; AR 5118 Student's option to transfer
the state's Open Enrollment List 5 CCR 4702 to another school

Within 60 days of receiving 48357; AR 5118 Whether student's transfer
application for transfer out of 5 CCR 4702 application is accepted or
open enrollment school rejected; reasons for rejection

When student requests to 48432.3 AR 6184 Copy of district policy and
voluntarily transfer to regulation on continuation
continuation school education

Prior to involuntary transfer 48432.5 AR 6184 Right to request meeting prior
to continuation school to involuntary transfer to

continuation school

When student is removed from 48900.1 BP 5144.1 Parental attendance required;
class and teacher requires AR 5144.1 timeline for attendance
parental attendance at school

Prior to withholding grades, 48904 AR 5125.2 Damaged school
diplomas, or transcripts property

When withholding grades, 48904.3 AR 5125.2 Next school will continue
diplomas or transcripts withholding grades, diplomas,
from transferring student or transcripts

When student is released 48906 BP 5145.11 Release of student to
to peace officer peace officer

At time of suspension 48911 BP 5144.1 Notice of suspension
AR 5144.1

When original period of 48911 AR 5144.1 Extension of suspension
suspension is extended

At the time a student is 48911.1 AR 5144.1 The student's assignment to
assigned to a supervised a supervised suspension
suspension classroom classroom

Before holding a closed 48912 AR 5144.1 Intent to hold a closed session
session re: suspension re: suspension

When student expelled 48915.1, BP 5119 Hearing re: possible danger
from another district for 48918 presented by expelled
certain acts seeks admission student

When readmission is 48916 AR 5144.1 Reasons for denial;
denied determination of assigned

program



8

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

When expulsion occurs 48916 AR 5144.1 Readmission procedures

10 calendar days before 48918 AR 5144.1 Notice of expulsion
expulsion hearing hearing

When expulsion or 48918 AR 5144.1 Decision to expel; right to
suspension of expulsion appeal to county board;
occurs obligation to inform new

district of status

One month before the 48980 BP 6111 When minimum days are
scheduled minimum day scheduled after beginning

of the school year

When parents request 48987 AR 5141.4 Guidelines for filing
guidelines for filing complaint of child abuse
complaint of child abuse at a school site with local
at a school site child protective agencies

When student in danger 49067 AR 5121 Student in danger
of failing a course of failing a course

When student transfers 49068 AR 5125 Right to receive copy of
from another district or student's record and to
private school challenge its content

Within 24 hours of 49076 AR 5125 Release of student record to a
release of information judge or probation officer for
to a judge or probation conducting truancy mediation
officer program or for presenting

evidence at a truancy petition

Before release of 49077 AR 5125 Release of information
information pursuant to pursuant to court order
court order or subpoena or subpoena

When screening results in 49452.5 AR 5141.3 Scoliosis screening
suspicion that student
has scoliosis

When test results in 49456 AR 5141.3 Vision or hearing test
discovery of visual or
hearing defects

Annually to parents/guardians 49475 AR 6145.2 Information on concussions
of student athletes before their and head injuries
first practice or competition



9

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

Before any test 51513 AR 5022 Permission for test, survey
questioning personal beliefs questioning personal beliefs

Within 14 days of instruction 51938 AR 6142.1 Instruction in HIV/AIDS or
if arrangement made for guest sexual health education by
speaker after beginning of guest speaker or outside
school year consultant

Prior to administering survey 51938 AR 5022 Notice that the survey will
regarding health risks and be administered
behaviors to students in 7-12

Within 30 calendar days 52164.1, AR 6174 Results of state test of
of receipt of results of 52164.3; English proficiency
assessment or reassessment 5 CCR 11511.5
of English proficiency

When migrant education 54444.2 BP 6175 Parent advisory council
program is established AR 6175 membership composition

When child participates in Health and Safety AR 5148 Parent right to enter facility
licensed child care and Code 1596.857
development program

When district receives Health and Safety AR 3513.3 The district's tobacco-free
Tobacco-Use Prevention 104420 schools policy and
Education Funds enforcement procedures

When sharing student Health and Safety AR 5125 Types of information to be
immunization information Code 120440 shared, name and address of
with an immunization agency, acceptable use of the system

information, right to examine,
right to refuse to share

When hearing is requested by Penal Code 627.5 AR 3515.2 Notice of hearing
person asked to leave
school premises

When responding to complaint 5 CCR 4631 AR 1312.3 Appeal rights and
re: discrimination, special procedures
education, or noncompliance
with law

When child participates in 5 CCR 18066 AR 5148 Policies re: unexcused
licensed child care and absences
development program

When district substantively 20 USC 1232h AR 5022 Notice of any substantive
changes policy on student change in policy or regulation
privacy rights



10

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur (continued)

For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6311 AR 4112.24 Timely notice to parent of
funds, when child has been child's assignment
taught for four or more
consecutive weeks by a teacher
who is not "highly qualified"

When school identified for 20 USC 6312 AR 0520.2 Notice of failure to make
program improvement or adequate yearly progress corrective action,
within 30 days of failure to
make annual yearly progress,
to parents of English learners

For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6312 AR 6174 Reasons for placement, level
funds, not later than 30 days of proficiency, instructional
after beginning of school year, methods, how program meets
to parents of English learners child's strengths and teaches

English, exit requirements,
right to choose other program

When school identified for 20 USC 6316 AR 0520.2 Explanation of identification,
program improvement or AR 5116.1 reasons, how problem will be
corrective action addressed, how parents can

become involved, transfer
option, availability of
supplemental services

When district identified for 20 USC 6316 AR 0520.3 Explanation of status, reasons
program improvement for identification, how parents

can participate in upgrading
district

For schools receiving Title I 20 USC 6318 AR 6020 Notice of policy
funds, upon development of
parent involvement policy

For districts receiving Title III 20 USC 7012 AR 6174 Notification of any failure
funds, within 30 days of the to make progress on state's
release of state Title III annual measurable
accountability report achievement objectives for

English learners

When household is selected 42 USC 1758; AR 3553 Notice of need to submit
for verification of eligibility 7 CFR 245.6a verification information; any
for free or reduced-price meals subsequent change in benefits;

right to appeal

When student transfers 34 CFR 99.34 AR 5125 Right to review records
out of state and records are
disclosed without consent
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30



11

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

IV.  Special Education Notices (continued)

Before functional behavioral 56321 AR 6159.4 Notification and consent
assessment begins

Prior to conducting initial 56301, 56321, AR 6164.4 Proposed evaluation plan,
evaluation 56321.5, 56321.6, related parental rights,

56329; 34 CFR prior written notice
300.502

24 hours before IEP 56341.1 AR 6159 Intention to audio-record
when district intending to IEP meeting
record

Early enough to ensure 56341.5; AR 6159 Time, purpose, location, who
opportunity for parent 34 CFR 300.322 in attendance, participation
to attend IEP meeting of others with special

knowledge, transition
statements if appropriate

When parent orally 56343.5 AR 6159 Need for written request
requests review of IEP

Within one school day of 56521.1 AR 6159.4 Emergency intervention
emergency intervention or
serious property damage

Whenever there is a proposal 20 USC 1415(c); AR 6159 Prior written notice
or refusal to initiate or change 34 CFR 300.300, AR 6159.1
the identification, evaluation, 300.503
placement, or FAPE, including
when parent/guardian revokes
consent for services

Initial referral for 20 USC 1415(d); AR 6159.1 Prior written notice and
evaluation 34 CFR 300.503 procedural safeguards notice

Registration of complaint 20 USC 1415(d); AR 6159.1 Procedural safeguards
34 CFR 300.504 notice

Disciplinary action taken 20 USC 1415(k); AR 5144.2 Decision and procedural
for dangerous behavior 34 CFR 300.530 safeguards notice

Suspension or change of 20 USC 1415(k); AR 5144.2 Decision and procedural
placement for more than 10 days 34 CFR 300.530 safeguards notice

Upon requesting a 20 USC 1415(k); AR 6159.1 Student's name, address,
due process hearing 34 CFR 300.508 school, description of problem,

proposed resolution



12

Education or Board Policy/
When to Other Legal Administrative
Notify Code Regulation # Subject

IV.  Special Education Notices (continued)

Eligibility for services 34 CFR 104.32, AR 6164.6 District responsibilities, district
under Section 504 104.36 actions, procedural safeguards

V.  Classroom Notices

In each classroom in each 35186 AR 1312.4 Complaints re: sufficiency of
school E 1312.4 instructional materials, teacher

vacancy or misassignment,
maintenance of facilities

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Exhibit SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
version: June 10, 2012 Sierraville, California
revised: June 19, 2013
revised:  June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Bylaws BB 9324(a)

MINUTES AND RECORDINGS

The Governing Board recognizes that maintaining accurate minutes of Board meetings provides a record of
Board actions for use by district staff and the public and helps foster public trust in Board governance.

(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board)
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)

The secretary of the Board shall keep minutes and record all official Board actions.  The Board's minutes shall
be public records and shall be made available to the public upon request.  (Education Code 35145, 35163)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 9122 - Secretary)
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 54952.2, a majority of the Governing Board must be present at a meeting in order to hear,
discuss, or deliberate on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Thus, the minutes should reflect any
occasion on which a member is not present for the entire meeting in order to document that a majority of the Board remained in
attendance throughout the meeting.

The minutes shall reflect which members are present and whether a member is not present for part of the
meeting due to late arrival and/or early departure.

(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)

In order to ensure that the minutes are focused on Board action, the minutes shall include only a brief summary
of the Board's discussion, but shall not include a verbatim record of the Board's discussion on each agenda topic
or the names of Board members who made specific points during the discussion.

The minutes shall include the specific language of each motion and the names of the Board members who made
and seconded the motion.

Note:  Pursuant to Government Code 54953, as amended by SB 751 (Ch. 257, Statutes of 2013), in addition to publicly reporting
any action taken, the minutes must note the vote or abstention of each member present for the action.

The minutes shall also report any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each member present.
(Government Code 54953)

The minutes shall reflect the names of those individuals who comment during the meeting's public comment
period as well as the topics they address.

The Superintendent or designee shall distribute a copy of the "unapproved" minutes of the previous meeting(s)
with the agenda for the next regular meeting.  The Board shall approve the minutes as circulated or with
necessary amendments.



Note:  The following optional paragraph is for use by districts which have their approved minutes signed by a Board officer or
designee and should be modified to reflect the appropriate position.

Upon approval by the Board, the minutes shall be signed by the Clerk of the Board and the Superintendent.

Official Board minutes and recordings shall be stored in a secure location and shall be retained in accordance
with law.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Note:  Although Government Code 54957.2 permits keeping of minutes for closed sessions, districts should consult with legal
counsel before making it a practice to do so.  Should a court determine that a district has violated the Brown Act, Government
Code 54960 allows the court to compel the Board to record its closed sessions.  See BB 9323.2 - Actions by the Board.

Any minutes or recordings kept for Board meetings held in closed session shall be kept separately from the
minutes or recordings of regular and special meetings.  Minutes or recordings of closed sessions are not public
records.  (Government Code 54957.2)
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

Recording or Broadcasting of Meetings

The district may tape, film, or broadcast any open Board meeting.  The Board president shall announce that a
recording or broadcasting is being made at the direction of the Board at the beginning of the meeting and, as
practicable, the recorder or camera shall be placed in plain view of meeting participants.

Any district recording may be erased or destroyed 30 days after the meeting. Recordings made at the direction
of the Board during a meeting are public records and, upon request, shall be made available for inspection by
members of the public on district equipment without charge.  (Government Code 54953.5)
Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE
35145  Public meetings
35163  Official actions, minutes and journals
35164  Vote requirements
GOVERNMENT CODE
54952.2  Meeting defined
54953  Meetings
54953.5  Audio or video recording of proceedings
54953.6  Broadcasting of proceedings
54957.2  Closed sessions; clerk; minute book
54960  Violations and remedies
PENAL CODE
632  Unlawful to intentionally record a confidential communication without consent
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
16020-16027  Classification and retention of records

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009
Guide to Effective Meetings, rev. 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA, Agenda Online:  http://www.csba.org

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

Regulation approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:                        August 9, 2011
revised: October 11, 2011
revised: June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California


	1_SCOE_6_18_14_AGENDA.pdf
	2_SCOE Career Technician_rev.pdf
	3_SCOE May2014 ObjSumm.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	4_CDE Letter.pdf
	5_5-13-14 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	6_SCOE May2014 Checks.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	



	7_SCOE_ConApp.pdf
	8.1_SELPA Notice of Hearing_2014.pdf
	8_SELPA Annual Service_Budget Plan_6_18.pdf
	SELPA Annual Service_Budget Plan.pdf
	ASP preschool services 004 2014.pdf
	service descriptors 6-14.pdf
	

	abp01.pdf
	ABSPChecklist[2].pdf
	ASP certification page.pdf
	ASP infant services 003 2014.pdf
	ASP other facilities 002 2014.pdf

	9_13-009 Set Superintendent's Salary 2014-2015.pdf
	10_SCOE_Common_Core.pdf
	11_SCOE Proposed LCAP May 13 2103nonCDEformat.pdf
	12_SCOE_BUDGET.pdf
	13_Policy Guidesheet.pdf
	14_Policies_6_18.pdf
	1_BP 3280_Sale or Lease.pdf
	2_BP 3513.3 Tobacco.pdf
	3_4112.42 BP Drug Test_Bus Drivers.pdf
	4_4112.42 AR Drug Test Bus Drivers.pdf
	5_E4112.9 Employee Notifications 4212.9_4312.9 Proposed.pdf
	6_AR 4117.14 PostRetirement.pdf
	7_AR4117.7 Employment Status_Proposed.pdf
	8_BP 5131.62 Tobacco Proposed.pdf
	9_BP 5144.1 Susp_Expul.pdf
	10_5144.1 AR Susp.pdf
	11_5145.6 E Parent Proposed.pdf
	12_BB 9324 Minutes and Recordings.pdf


